M Gmail Clark Lovelace <clark@brevardncchamber.org>

Fwd: TCT Board Meeting Packet

1 message

Clark Lovelace <clark@brevardncchamber.org> Tue, Jan 26, 2021 at 5:47 PM
To: Ali Lien <ali@mountainroots.org>, David Guice <david.guice@transyivaniacounty.org>, Dee Dee Perkins
<d2perkins@gmail.com>, Grant Bullard <grant@gwynnvaliey.com>, Jessica Whitmire <jessica@headwatersoutfitters.com>,
Layton Parker <layton@comporium.net>, Libby <llbbyfreeman1@gmail.com>, Mac Morrow <morrow@keirmfg.com>, Tracie
Trusler <tracie.trusler@gmail.com>

Cc: Corey Gafnea <corey@explorebrevard.com>, Mary Jo Gordon <mj@explorebrevard.com>, Jonathan Griffin
<Jonathan.Grifﬁn@transylvaniacounty.org>. Nathan Jordan <NJordan@mktconnections.com>, Karen Tessier
<ktessier@mktconnections.com>

Forgot to include the monthly marketing report. It's included in the below.

Clark E. Lovelace

Executive Director

Brevard/Transylvanla Chamber of Commerce
Transylvania County Tourlsm Development Authority

175 East Main St., Brevard NC, 28712

Chamber: 828-883-3700, brevardncchamber.org

TCTDA: 828-884-8800 / B00-648-4523, explorebrevard.com

--—--— Forwarded message —------

From: Clark Lovelace <clark@brevardncchamber.org>

Date: Tue, Jan 26, 2021 at 2:00 PM

Subject: TCT Board Meeting Packet

To: Alf Lien <ali@mountainroots.org>, David Guice <david.guice@transylvaniacounty.org>, Dee Dee Parkins
<d2perkins@gmail.com>, Grant Bullard <grant@gwynnvallay.com>, Jessica Whitmire <jessica@headwatersoutfitters.
com>, Layton Parker <layton@comporium.net>, Libby <libbyfreeman1@gmail.com>, Mac Morrow
<morrow@keirmfg.com>, Tracie Trusler <tracie.trusler@gmail.com>

Cc: Coray Gafnea <corey@explorebrevard.coms, Mary Jo Gordon <mj@explorebrevard.com>, Jonathan Griffin
<Jonathan.Griffin@transylvaniacounty.org>, Nathan Jordan <NJordan@mktconnections.com>, Karen Tessier
<ktessier@mktconnections.com>

TCT Board of Directors,

Attached and below Is key information in preparation for our virtual board mesting Thursday morning at 8am. Specifically,
attached is the normal info - an agenda, minutes from our last meeting, and monthly financial information. | have also
included a document listing our committees along with their roles, meeting times, and other key Information. As
mentloned, we'll be finalizing committee roles at the meeting, with each board member needing to serve on at least one
committee. Please review everything in advance to allow for an efficient meeting. '

There is a new board member orientation at 9am tomorrow. Among other things, | will be walking through our financials
covering key information to provide clarity. If any continuing board members would iike to participate, just let me know.

To be as efficient as possible at our board meetings, | will include certain updates here rather than go into detail at the
mesting. I'll reference this update and ask if there are any questions. That update is below:

Office Report and Tourism Updates



Transylvania Tomorrow - A press release was sent last week to the TTimes with an update on the program to date and
a call out to all donors and applicants prior to the final deadline of February 1. To date, the fund has supported 102
businesses with $224,000. _

TCT Annual Report - On January 11 | presented our annual report to the commissioners. No unexpected questions or
issues were raised.

AIrDNA |nformation - As mentioned, we are now receiving reports from AirDNA with information on short-term rentals in
Transylvania County. Corey and | are working with Layton to review the information and will provide a repert prior to or at
our next meeting.

Planned Downtown Brevard Hotel - The City of Brevard held a public hearing on the purchase of their property behind
the courthouse by a hotel developer on January 19. During the public comment portion, | said a few words in general
about the unique possibility of an independant hotel in downtown Brevard. Dee Dee spoke as well. Here is a link to a
story in the TTimes. | met with the developer a few weeks ago. He has a unique background with his last project being a
green build in a state park.

Blind Mule Moving - The Blind Mule is moving from Lake Toxaway to the former Twin Flames space in downtown
Brevard (next to Big Mikes).

Project Undates from the City of Brevard - Aaron Biand with the Brevard planning department recently updated me on
the Davidson River pedestrian bridge and intersection at the PNF interest. Here are his own words, "I know you are
espacially Interested in the progress of the pedestrian bridge across Davidson River so | wanted to pass along the
updated timeline. As you no doubt know, the STIP schedule and budget have bean greatly disrupted by COVID. Right-of-
way (ROW) acquisition is set to begin 8/18/2023 and the let date is 7/26/2024. These dates are the most recent
information available from NCDOT Division 14 but they could very well change (in slther directlon). Regarding the
roundabout at the main Pisgah Forest intersection, it is scheduled to begin ROW 7/16/2021 with a let date of 8/15/2023.
That is a top priority project for NCDOT in our area.

Let me know at the meeting if any questions on the above. Zoom info is below. See you Thursday moming.

Clark Lovelace is inviting you to a scheduled Zoom mesting.

Topic: TCT Board Meeting
Time: Jan 28, 2021 08:30 AM Eastern Time (US and Canada)

Join Zoom Meeting
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/88351067637 ?pwd=WmFNK2ZWWTczalZVS2tubVvwdIpLQT09

Meeting ID; 883 5106 7637

Passcode: 679954

One tap mobile

+13017158592,,88351067637#,,,,*679954# US (Washington DC)
+13126266799,,88351067637#,,,,*679954# US (Chicago)

Dial by your location
+1 301 715 8592 US (Washington DC)
+1 312 626 6799 US (Chicago)
+1 929 205 6099 US (New York)
+1 253 215 8782 US (Tacoma)
+1 346 248 7799 US (Houston)
+1 669 900 6833 US (San Jose)
Meeting ID: 883 5106 7637
Passcode: 679954
Find your local number: https://us02web.zoom.us/u/kc5x93Judt

Clark E. Lovelace

Executlve Director

BrevardMransylvania Chamber of Commerce
Transylvania County Tourlsm Development Authority

175 East Main St., Brevard NC, 28712

Chamber: 828-883-3700, brevardncchamber.org

TCTDA: 828-884-8900 / 800-648-4523, explorebrevard.com



6 attachments

ﬂ ':'gg;?A Agenda (1-28-21).pdf

41) TCTDA Minutes (December, 2020) .pdf
173K

'E TCTDA Revenues & Expendltures (December, 2020).pdf
37K

Occupancy Revenue (thru November, FY21).pdf
m 82K

2020 TCT Committees (for 2021 committee discussion).pdf
B
147K

TCT Marketing Report - January (21).pdf
B
86K




Transylvania County Tourism Development Authority
Board Meeting Agenda
January 28, 2021
8:30 am

Call to Order - Layton Parker
Presentation of Minutes — Layton Parker

Director’s Report — Clark Lovelace

Financials

HOB Grant Request

Office Report and Tourlsm Updates
Board of Directors Email Accounts

Chair's Report — Layton Parker
s 2021 Committees
e 2021 Retreat Agenda
Presentation on Parker Concert Hall - Mark Weinstein, Brevard Music Center President
Marketing Update — Market Connections
Destination Infrastructure Funding Request
Old Business
New Business

Public Comment

Meeting Adjourn

TCTDA Misslon Statement - To generate and enhance tourism opportunities in Transylvania County through
strategic promotion coordinated with tourlsm-related businesses and local government, and to contribute to a
vibrant, sustainable economy.



Transylvania County Tourism Development Authority
Minutes of 12/3/20 Virtual Board Meeting

Present: Grant Bullard, Aaron Baker, Layton Parker, Mac Morrow, Libby Freeman, Tracie Trusler, Mike
Hawkins, Dee Dee Perkins, Tad Fogel, Jonathan Griffin

Absent: None

Staff Present: Clark Lovelace, M) Gordon, Corey Gafnea

Guests Present: Earl Hunter

Call to Order - Layton Parker
The meeting was called to order at 8:31 AM by Layton Parker.

Presentation of Minutes — Layton Parker

The minutes of October 22, 2020 were presented for review by Layton Parker. Dee Dee Perkins made a
motion to approve as presented. Grant Bullard seconded. Motion passed.

Office Report — Clark Lovelace

FInanclals - Financlals were sent out in the advance packet. Clark noted It was another record-breaking month
with occupancy revenue. Expenses are in |ine, Dee Dee made a motion to approve the financials as presented.
Tad seconded. Motion passed.

Office Report and Tourlsm Updates — Clark covered the following:

» @

Transylvania Tomorrow relaunched. TCT donated $10,000. Over $50,000 for this winter iteration
raised to date. Rolling monthly applications Dec 1, Jan 1, Feb 1.
TCT Annual Report sent to county commissioners. Clark offered to present.
Clark sent recommendations for open board seats.
Chamber has appointed Jessica Whitmire to serve on the TCT board
Clark has been in conversations with AirDNA, a third-party company that provides detailed data on
short-term rentals In a community. He was able to get a quote lower than was previously reported,
which was 56K+. Following a conversation with Layton, we are entering into an annual contract for
$4,200 with funds from our strategic plan expense line. We will receive certain data on our
destination going back five years and monthly information on our destination, plus a few “comps” for
each month.
Local Tourism News
o Deerwoode Camp Property is in the process of being sold. It's a really neat property with 15-
20 units and lots of land with a conservation easement.
o Under Canvas Is considering Transylvania County as a WNC location for Yurt style rentals
adjacent to our public lands.

Guest Speaker — Earl Hunter ~ Black Folks Camp, Too

Earl spoke about the importance of diversity and Inclusion in outdoor recreation, not Just because it is the right
thing to do, but also because it is the financially prudent thing to do. He shared his personal story in the
outdoor recreation Industry and his movement to his new business, BFCT. He is working on a number of deals
that could be really cool and meaningful to have our support and get started locally. He does not have a
specific ask at this time, but will be in touch,



Chair Report - Layton Parker
Finance Committee Recommendations
e Updated Revenue/Expenses — Layton directed everyone to the October financials Clark provided,
which included a column with recommended changes. The committee recommends amending the
FY21 budget ordinance for the Authority as follows:
© Increasing the occupancy revenue to $1,175,364 to more accurately reflect what we expect
based on what we know now regarding the Impact of the pandemic on occupancy revenues
An additional $100,000 to Advertising/Marketing
An additional $50,000 to Strategic Plan
An additional $25,000 to Transylvania Always
An additional $2,000 to Promotional Items
© An additional $8,000 to Partnership Funding
@ Other Possible Expenditures
O The Ecusta Trail was discussed at length, relating to the closing of the current agreement to
purchase, required englneering reports, getting support by local leaders, and more.
Ultimately, it was decided to set aside $50,000 of the fund balance as funds specifically.
o Mark Weinstein with the Brevard Music Center has approached Layton and Clark about TCT
financial support of making their new Parker Concert Hall a fully equipped conference facility.
Layton has slated Mark for a presentation at our January meeting. We should keep this
project in mind when considering other possible destinations for our funds.

00 00

Layton made a motion to amend the FY21 budget ordinance for the Authority as covered in the committee
motion with the addition of $50,000 from the fund balance being set aslde for the Ecusta Trail. Grant
seconded. Motion approved unanimously.

TCT / Chamber Contract

We slgned a one-year agreement last year for various reasons, including COVID-19. We need to move on a
new contract. Past structure has been for two individuals from each board to form a joint committee and meet
together, along with Clark, to work out necessary details. Layton suggested that he get another board member
to join him as a representative and proceed with a meeting. Consensus was for him to move forward
accordingly.

Early 2021 Board Plans
@ January Meeting — We willl be initiating new board members and assigning committees. Market
Connections will attend and Mark Weinsein will present at our next meeting on Thursday, January 28%.
e February Meeting — Annual % day retreat. It will be a 3-hour extended meeting without a facilitator on
Thursday, February 25,

Destination Infrastructure Committee - Clark shared that at the most recent DIC meeting the committee
approved a recommendation of TCT committing $3,000 in funding support for the new dog park, with the
funds to come from the strategic plan line item. Mike seconded the committee motion. Motion passed.

Old Business
None

New Business
None




Public Comment
None

Meeting Adjourn
Meeting was adjourned by Layton Parker at 10:31 AM

Minutes respectfully submitted by Corey Gafnea




84} 40 YOBS 0} SenuUeAal 15 BUROU LI0M S ! ‘SOUBIBG PURY BY UC 19BCLUI PUB PUS-JR6A JGDISLOD oM BY "Bupose 158y 10 Je pessed sem jei 10BN MU i} SEISKAI LNGS 166ph] BiLL
.gﬂﬂgo?ggm%waghgghﬁumg%wui

o peeu jpm inq ‘Kiobayes BugeyeyyBusnionpy oy yinang esusdxe ou pred a4 "Penedal UGBY aABYy SDUNY BLL ‘Peppe usaq SRy UOTEIONY STHYD DN J0f oull anueses i
SejoUBUY JQUIBACN Sanpoid Luop AlfBoidA} om JELINIOP JUIGHID B UC POREIEP BIE SGNUSAGL ARJIOLL NG 3OS Pue YSQUISIEQ 0 LOIPDE U ayap-0i-aeak .

404 samypuadye pue SSRUSARS SII0Ha! JISWNIOD S GOWS Uaquiedac] Aiea uj Bupesw eqyAON ol ino 6} anp yodai fouUBUY 58] NG BaLE pessBd BASY SYLOU OM] 181 GjoN

ToepEiDS G5tUvlly 70f SejoN

088'895 $ (Pur-rea)) soueieg puny

000'0S $ (1141 meno3) spundg pepjunsog

S18‘p2L) $ eBriepunebessag Lzad

$96°06¢ $ (BuwyBeg) esuepeg puny
1afipng

aouejeg pun

f

00002 i ooseL’s $§ - $ 00002 $ | ooo0e $ 00001 s - $ Buipund diyeiewsy

| 00008 $ 6zi0E0 i - § 00052 $ | 0006z $§ - $ $| weiBoud WIS wsuno|

_ =] i I _ [ 1 Buipung diysieupey g jueig
| 1 = H | - | m | — _

| 000001 $ 12009 $ - $ | cva'an $ 000'cL $ 2% $ - $ | sABMm[Y BJUBAMSLRRI |

— ; = . : - L _ [

000002 $ | Zo'9te'zy $ 00ceE  § _.Sm.% $ | 000'00} $ | oou'ol $ | ooL'g $ ueyd 21Begeng

| ; = | | : —

000'009 $ | 60'185'88Z $ | £2Te0'ey $ 625'L6E $ | BEE'EYS $  l08'56) $ _..5.3 $ Bupexrep/Suisnieapy
000's  §eLsel $ = & 00S'y ~ § oSy s [ SWwey [eucpowald
|ooeZ 8] - 5| - $ 581 $ o052 $ 566 §| - § suondposqns ‘seng
| 00eZ $ ZLize $ ee68 $ | zEL'l 5 08zl m_us $ s $ Bl
| o051 5169897 3§ - $ 62eL $ oooe AR $ o8 $ ebelsad

000 5 §ZH0: $ 69ESZ) $ o197 $ o0sv $ cesl 5| I8€ $ suoydoge )

005 € $ | S6'0ZBZ 5 | 8Tzt & e8Ll £ 0087 Pl — § 8l £ seiddng

_ t 1 asuadxz ey
— = | e — =  — T | —
[t ) § 0000 . 3 888V 3 | B5r9 n _os1 8] - 5 SIS PRUOD UpnY
122'981 i 99'799'08 $| - $ | o00's0l $ ooookz $ 00090} § 003l $ 530185 J0RNUCD JBqUIBLD

| ev0'0e $l - $| - $ 612 8§ t6ie $| - $ - $ 834 uwpy Aunod
_ | | |

WIiE $ ¢ B LA S L S | Gel'sy 1 L nYeARg el
T $ = 'SL6'b2L) T - L I s oy OUBjeR pund
000Z $ $| - $ 000% i |o00T 5 - £ - — % Bwoou] jsasepy

loog ] $) - ¢ o 5§ 005 i 06} s - 5] sajeg dey

| 000'5Z $ 8 - s.awe 3 ooom §oeeeTw™ § enre § Buispieapy

_ WM _ VN | VN T T T 5 | co0'0l 3 uogesolly STUVD ONJO

LBLy g ez 8§ zvle ¢ | v86 i 9601 5| ¥0r $ % safjeuaq
S8Z'¥00 | $ ILLLP09S 5 e0eKa'sy $ | ¥59'g92 $ | ¥OESLLL $ | 012906 § | soeLll $ anuasey xe . Aouednaog

Bipng kZad QLK LZhd
0Z0Z "Jequesaq Jo LpUOR oLy o
sainjipuadx3j/enusaey - yal fjuno) ejueajksues

Uyiso yuazing




"HS1A JO LU Je AIesSaoeU J0u ‘PAAIBORI BIE SPUNY UBYM qUAIY Aq PepIooal ale Saxe) jat] SION SNHeW XIS BU) 108yau 0} umoys Juswuked wns dwn| B S| ququRy -
“Hav JeyBiy u| Bupinsal Oz A4 Ul POpPPE SEM UOIBPOWWOSZE [RUOIPPE Uy "SW00J +G JG SLoNepowwoaae Aq peiiddns ejep uo paseq aue sogspe)s Aouednosg -

ALNNOHLAY LNINJOTIATA NSRINOL ALNNOD VINVATASNVIL

*(%5£Z) suonoasfoD guauny ‘(9,0) Aouednao0 uujjelopeoH “(%Z+) HAV ‘(%00+) enueasy Asuednoog 11eak Joud “sA S)8Y8 (LA - :soqon|
gie70L § eev'sl $ |082'€Z § |S86VYC $ |92L'IZ § | SIS § guginy
a9l $ cel $/v8F $/291. s|os1 $ (v & Hay
oLyl %ED %9 %9 %G %98 Aouednsag
log'zee  $ €50'195 ¢ | 509'e8r $ | L08°ZOE $ | GB/'EOZ $ | 9692Vl $ | (LA OZAd
162996 $ | 161'991 $ [ J6L'V2 $ [ 8Sk'8 S I LeeST $ | vIP'EP $ | S22 $ /04229 ¢ |68cT. ¢ | B6/'GZL $ | 280'66 S | 680°LZL $ | 969°ZFL $ | IEmMOoV 0ZAd
Zoloez $ 602'62 $ | sho'cr ¢ | L60'85 ¢ | vo6'BS $ | ZPE'OF guginy
0Ll $ oG} ¢ 1€ $ | 0L $ | 9L % | 02 $ Hav
YL %1S %08 %2l %EL %14 fouednang
v69'cas $ ge9'c. $ | g2e'sZL ¢ |Z2e'BLL $ | 168 bEL $ | BLL'LLL S CRTETTTY
2852 $ - $ |22 3 - $ | €2 $ |57 ¢ Ajeued
gir'ics $ BSP'SLL $ | ¥OE'10Z S | E¥Z'LLL S | PLL°20Z § | 90E96L § | 1eMIOV LZAH
voe'ssL'L $ | 129'%0L $ eSQ. $ chmm $ |cov'6r $ | €20'6E $ | LSCOP $ | EPOOG $ |6VL'GY $ | BIZELLS | 9852OL $ | OVBO0C $ | SZSF6L § |ationg LzAd

STVIOL| eunr yorep | lenuqes | Awmenuer |isqueseq |JequeroN | Jeqopg [Jequeideg| jsnBny Anp
— S
- -
— 000°0vS
000'09$
- 000'08%
000°00TS
000°0ZTS
— 000°0VTS
000°09T$
: TZ0Z0zE  139ongm  0Z-6I0CE 000°081%
o - 000°002%
HINODNI XVI, AONVANDD0




BREVARD TRANSYLVANIA COUNTY

2020 Committees

Finance
Meetings: As Needed

Membership:
e Board {3): Layton Parker (Chair), Grant Bullard, Libby Freeman
¢ Community (0):
e Staff: Clark Lovelace

Duties:

¢ Monthly - Expediently review monthly financials prepared by ED prior to board meeting. Ask
necessary questions to result in committee endorsement for presentation at board meeting.
Annually - Work with ED to create proposed budget for upcoming year.
As needed - Review and discuss with ED financial items impacting the organization. Make appropriate
recommendations to board.
Review submitted Tourism Grant Program applications and approve/deny within budgeted funds.
Consider and review other partnership funding requests/opportunities and make recommendations to
the board.

Additional Info: Jonathan Griffin is copied on all financial information and invited to attend each meeting

Transylvania Always Committee
Meetings: Second Thursday of each month at 2:00 pm

Membership: ] ‘

e Board (3): = B, Grant Bullard, [SRiupes

e Community (4): Erlc Caldwell Lee McMinn, Devin Gentrv, e

s Staff: Clark Lovelace, Mary Jo Gordon, Corey Gafnea, Nathan Jordan
Dutles:

e Fulfill mission to be a leader in the effort to take care of Transylvania County’s natural resources in
order to create a safe and enjoyable user experience and ensure that these assets are here for future
generations.

e Utllize funds appropriated by the board and limited organizational capacity to:

1. Activate/coordinate key sustainability projects like waterfzall safety and Leave It Better.
2. Seek and support projects activated/coordinated by partners to achieve maximum impact.




Marketing
Meetings: Third Wednesday of each month at 9:00 am

Membership:

s Board (3): Dee Dee Perkins (Chair), Layton Parker, Tracie Trusler

e Community (3):  Bob Andrews, Lydia Qdell, and

e Staff: Clark Lovelace, Corey Gafnea, MJ Gordon, Nathan lordan, Karen Tessier
Duties:

e Work with Market Connections and staff to create a marketing plan for upcoming year and present to
full board for approval.

e Receive updates from Market Connections and staff on current marketing plan and provide input as
appropriate on implementation. Consider new marketing initiatives and make decisions on
contingency funds or recommendations to full board for use of other funds.

Destination Infrastructure
Meetings: First Wednesday of each month at 4:00 pm

Membership:
e Board (3): Mike Hawkins (Chalir), Mac Morrow, Dee Dee Perkins
s Community (3}: Josh Hallinges {TEA), Nicole Bentley {HOB),
e Staff: Clark Lovelace, Corey Gafnea

Duties:

o Focus on the long-term board vision for our destination, which is to create a strong sustainable
tourism economy that provides benefit to our community and makes this a desirable place to visit and
live.

e Consider key elements, such as downtown Brevard, the gateways to our community and public lands,
outdoor recreation, arts and cuiture, outlying communities, etc., seeking opportunities for
collaboration and project support,

e Make recommendations to the board for use of funds when appropriate.

Annual Committee Presentation Schedule

January - Market Connections, Transylvania Always
February (retreat) - All

March — None {retreat follow up)

April - Market Connections, Marketing

May — Finance, Destination Infrastructure

June - Market Connections, Transylvania Always
July — None

-August - Market Connections, Destination Infrastructure
September - Transylvania Always

October - Market Connections, Marketing
Nov/Dec - Finance, Destination Infrastructure



TRANSYLVANIA COUNTY

TOURISM

TRANSYLVANIA COUNTY TOURISM

MARKETING REPORT
January 2021

E-Newsletter Messages

The December issue of Field Notes focused on the arts scene was sent on December 16th to 19,109 recipients
with an open rate of 15.2% which translates to 2,902 opens. It generated 370 outbound link clicks. The
January issue of the Adventurist went out on December 29th to 19,073 recipients with an open rate of 20.6%
which translates to 3,913 opens. It highlighted the Eat/Think Local program as well as Transylvania Tomorrow
and generated 158 outbound link clicks.

Soclal Medla

Our Facebook audience has decreased slightly from December to 15,421 followers. We lost a total of six
followers last month. Our Instagram app has grown to 15,725 followers. Our twitter account audience has
decreased to 2,465 followers. Explore Brevard YouTube channel has grown to 194 subscribers (averaging
2-5 new subscribers per month currently) with 298,443 total views among 52 videos.

Digital, Print, Radlo, Soclal Media and TV Advertising

Qur phased wmter campaign was in full swing during the months of November, December and January

along with additional advertising already scheduled per our annual marketing plan. An exceptionally

wide variety of advertising communication channels were engaged to encourage visitation and economic

revitalization throUughout the county during the holidays.

+ Our new :30 Think Outside winter TV spot is currently running in Atlanta, Charlotte and Nashville. A full
suite of connected TV is also set to launch the same spot before the close of the month.

* The full spectrum of digital advertising (paid search, retargeted display, digital pre-roll, native digital
display and YouTube) focused on “late fall/early winter” travel and the mild climate launched in early
November and was updated in early December to present a holiday promotional message. Co-op digital
retargeted display ads ran promoting TC Chamber and Heart of Brevard holiday events. We then pivoted
to general winter Think Outside campaign advertising with a soft invitation to plan for a future trip or visit.
Additionally digital banner and e-newsletter ads in Blue Ridge Outdoors were updated to focus on the
winter season.

* Special radio advertising was utilized to highlight mild weather weekends in November and early
December with dynamic reads on WNCW radio in NC and WSEC radio in upstate SC.

« Print ads ran highlighting the Think Outside winter campaign in Our State and Blue Ridge Outdoors. There
will also be upcoming print ads In the VisitNC Travel Guide and Safe Outdoor Travel Specialty print piece
produced by Meredith Publishing (tourism recovery grant opportunity through VisitNC). Print advertising in
the first six months of the new fiscal year has been limited.

In addition the board approved $100,000 in supplemental marketlng funds for the remainder of the fiscal

year for which Market Connections developed and presented a budget to the marketing committee in mid

January. These funds will be utilized to engage several new marketing opportunities and reengage programs

TCT would normally utilize, and an overview will be provided in this month’s board meeting.



Sweepstakes

A winter getaway sweepstakes offering a vacation package including an overnight stay, free merchandise,
a local guided fly fishing experience and gift card was launched on December 4th. It was promoted on our
social media channels, with digital advertisements and on Romanticasheville.com. The contest ran through
December 31st and generated 923 entrles, 475 sign ups for the Adventurist E-Newsletter and 529 requests
for an Adventure Gulde and Waterfall map. A full sweepstakes recap was conducted with the TCT team to
inform future sweepstakes promotion strategies.

A future mountain biking sweepstakes hosted by PinkBike.com for spring 2021 is currently under
development and will launch in April. This partnership will yield a new microtargeted audience set who is
focused on cycling in the area.

Website Metrics

Overall site traffic continues to Improve. Our winter campalgn period traffic (November - January) is up
4.55% compared to the same period last year. January traffic is down compared to last year dude to a launch
of a winter sweepstakes during that timeframe last year.

Additionally we continue to improve in ranking for the term “Brevard” in organic and referred traffic to the
website. Current global average position for this term is up to 7.8 from 8.5 last month. Google has recently
targeted explorebrevard.com as a primary organic target for this term due to a combination of SEQ efforts
and the redirect of brevard.com polnting to the site. Additionally the site ranks at 5.6 globally for the term
"“Brevard NC* up from 5.9 last month. ’

The top three visited pages during December were the Lodging, Great Outdoors and Events Calendar pages.

Our top four metro markets continue from the previous period:
#1 Charlotte

#2 Atlanta

#3 Birmingham

#4 Ralelgh

#5 Nashvllle

COVID-19 - Messaging & Response Update

Our COVID landing page have been modified to "Travel Information”, We continue our tempered and himble
approach before making any adjustments to messaging. As the state continues to assess moving through
phases we are actively monitoring trends and adjusting messaging accordingly. As we progressed through
December and COVID-19 cases continued to increase in North Carolina, TCT staff and Market Connections
began changing the tone of our messaging to one speaking to future visits versus pushing for an immediate
one, This included postponing or canceling certain marketing and advertising plans for early 2021.

A marketing relief fund from VisitNC recently rewarded TCT with a $61,000 credit toward VisitNC programs
(to be utilized October, Novermber and December) to promote responsible visitation. The funds were utilized
to work in tandem with our current advertising efforts and include connected TV, Over the top TV, a special
safe travel guide ad insertion which will be ploy-bagged with VisitNC travel guides and multiple Meredith
publications among other digital and social media advertising opportunities. A virtual Get Out Guide page
has been developed to inform visitors of current events and posters that contain a QR code directing traffic
to this page have been distributed.



M Gmail I Clark Lovelace <clark@brevardncchamber.org>

February TCT Board Meeting Packet
Clark Lovelace <clark@brevardncchamber.org> Tue, Fab 23, 2021 at 3:30 PM
To: "Ali Lien (TCT)" <ali@explorebrevard.com>, "David Guice (TCT)" <david@explorebrevard.com>, "Dee Dee Perkins
(TCT)" <dd@explorebrevard.com>, "Grant Bullard (TCT)" <grant@explorebrevard.com>, "Jessica Whitmire (TCT)"
<|essica@explorebrevard.com>, "Layton Parker (TCT)" <layton@explorebrevard.com>, "Libby Freeman (TCT)"
<libby@explorebrevard.com>, "Mac Morrow (TCT)" <mac@explorebrevard.com>, Tracie Trusler
<tracie@explorebrevard.com>

Cc: Corey Gafnea <corey@explorebrevard.com>, Mary Jo Gordon <mj@explorebrevard.com>, Nathan Jordan
<NJordan@mktconnections.com>, Karen Tessier <ktessier@mbktconnections.com>, Jonathan Griffin
<Jonathan.Griffin@transylvaniacounty.org>

TCT Board,

Our next TCT board meeting is at 8:30am this Thursday, February 25 (virtual). As a reminder, the plan is for a relatively
brief board meeting followed by a retreat, with an intended ending of 11:30am. Attached is the normal information, plus
an agenda for the ratreat and a couple of attachments related to the below office report. Please review everything prior to
the meeting and let me know Iif any questions. We have a slightly early departure, but otherwise | don't believe we've
heard from anyone who is unable to attend all of the meeting. If this is the case, please email me and Corey ASAP.

Office Report and Tourism Updates
New Emall Addresses - Please be sure to use your new "@explorebrevard” email addresses. As a reminder, these are
designed to protect you from having any personal emails being caught up in an open records request. If you have
questions, please email corey@explorebrevard.com.
Transylvania Tomorrow - The winter rounds are completed. Since inception, the program has provided almost
$250,000 to more than 100 local businesses. No specific future rounds and deadlines are defined at this time, but the
task force plans on continuing the effort.

ystem - The County announced a new bus system and is holding a ribbon cutting tomorrow.
Altached is mors info.
Planned Downtown Brevard Hotel - The development process continues. | met again with the developer, who
continues to express a desire to include TCT and other key stakeholders as they develop their specific plan. Here is the
story | shared earier.
Blind Mule Open- The Blind Mule is open in the former Twin Flames space in downtown Brevard (next to Big Mikes).

ges- A restaurant called "Papa L.E.W.'s" Is opening in the former DFR room bar area. The

event space will be used mostly for private parties or games, etc. to PPL and KTCHN patrons. There is a spiral staircase
you can go from KTCHN down below to the new spot. A bike shop is opening in the front space that was formerly a
gallery. Cup & Saucer is expanding back into the space previously occupied by WolfBrew.

Let me know at the meeting if any questions on the above. Zoom info is below. See you Thursday moming.

Clark Lovelace is inviting you to a scheduled Zoom meeting.

Topic: TCT Board Retreat
Time: Feb 25, 2021 08:30 AM Eastern Time (US and Canada)

Joln Zoom Maeting
hitps://us02web.zoom.us/}/816462220507pwd=SkQ5d0IPaW9jaVVAzKOtre TYvOUEOdz09

Mesting ID: 816 4622 2050

Passcode: 692109

One tap mobile ,
+13017158592,,81646222050#,,,,"692109# US (Washington DC)
+13126266799,,81646222050#,,,,*692109# US (Chicago)

Dial by your location
+1 301 715 8592 US (Washington DC)



+1 312 626 6799 US (Chicago)
+1 929 205 6099 US (New York)
+1 253 215 8782 US (Tacoma)
+1 346 248 7799 US (Houston)
+1 869 900 6833 US (San Jose)
Meesting ID: 816 4622 2050
Passcode: 692109
Find your local number: https:/us02web.zoom.us/u/kf7JqIQNk

Clark E. Lovelace

Executive Director

Brevard/Transyivanla Chamber of Commerce
Transylvania County Tourism Development Authority

175 East Maln St., Brevard NC, 28712

Chamber: 828-883-3700, brevardncchamber.org

TCTDA: 828-884-8900 / 800-648-4523, explorebrevard.com

BREVARD
R}

7 attachments

q TCTDA Agenda (2-25-21).pdf
134K

E TCTDA Minutes (January, 2021) .pdf
147K

L TCTDA Revenues & Expenditures (January, 2021).pdf
38K :

'ﬂ Occupancy Revenue (thru December, FY21).pdf
83K

TCTDA Retreat Agenda (2-25-21).pdf
-
125K

New Fixed Route Service Flyer.pdf
a
187K

m Fixed Route Press Release.pdf
119K



Transylvania County Tourism Development Authority
Minutes of 2/25/21 Virtual Board Meeting

Present: Grant Bullard, Layton Parker, Mac Morrow, Libby Freeman, David Guice, Dee Dee Perkins,
Ali Lien, Jessica Whitmire, Tracie Trusler

Absent: None

Staff Present: Clark Lovelace, MJ Gordon, Corey Gafnea

Guests Present: Karen Tessier, Nathan Jordan, Jonathan Griffin

Call to Order — Layton Parker
The meeting was called to order at 8:31 AM by Layton Parker.

Presentation of Minutes — Layton Parker

The minutes of January 28, 2021 were presented for review by Layton Parker. Grant Bullard made a
motion to approve as presented. Dee Dee Perkins seconded. Motion passed.

Director’s Report — Clark Lovelace

Flnancials — On the revenue side we continue the trend with record retumns, mostly reflected in the
STR market. On the expense side, everything is in line, although a few categories are trending toward
some unspent dollars vs. what was budgeted, specifically the grants and partnerships category. David
Guice made a motion to approve January financiais as presented. Dee Dee Perkins seconded the
motion. Motion passed.

Office Report and Tourism Updates — Clark asked if there were any questions on his report with the
advanced board packet. He reminded board members to check their explorebrevard.com emails on a
regular basis, especially the week or 8o prior to meetings. Corey will no longer send out reminder texts
after today.

Chair Report — Layton Parker

Brevard Music Center Funding Request — Layton reminded that the request from BMC is for
$50,000 toward $100,742 to upfit the Parker Concert Hall as an event space for weddings,
conferences, etc. A discussion was held and the consensus was that this request supports our
mission and is an answer for groups that we want to attract and will benefit our hotels. BMC has a
marketing plan and has hired staff to promote and manage the venue. Their plan needs to include
programming to enhance weekday and off season visitation, which should be covered prior to
disbursing funds. Dee Dee Perkins made a motion to approve the grant request as presented. Mac
Morrow seconded the motion. Motion was approved unanimously.

Chamber/TCT Contract - Layton reminded that a committee comprised of two TCT board members
and two Chamber board members were tasked with focusing on a new contract beginning July 1,
2021. The group met and are recommending a one-year contract with the same structure including a
base amount and amendment, with a 2.4% increase. Mack Morrow made a motion to renew the
contract for one year. Libby Freeman seconded. Motion passed unanimously.

Destination Infrastructure Funding Request — Dee Dee Perkins



The Destination Infrastructure Committee received a funding request from the Heart of Brevard and
the City of Brevard for $8,000 toward $27,000 for Christmas/Holiday snowflake decorations for the
downtown light posts, with each of the other entities contributing the same amount. A motion was
made from the Destination Infrastructure committee to approve the grant request as presented. Libby
seconded the motion. Motion was approved unanimously.

Old Business
None

New Business
None

Public Comment
None

Meeting Adjourn

Motion made to adjoun meeting at 8:55 by Dee Dee. Seconded by Grant. Motion passed.

Minutes respectfully submitted by Corey Gafnea



Transylvania County Tourism Development Authority
Minutes of 2/25/21 Virtual Retreat Meeting

Present: Grant Bullard, Layton Parker, Mac Morrow, Libby Freeman, David Guice, Dee Dee Perkins,
Ali Lien, Jessica Whitmire, Tracie Trusler

Absent: None

Staff Present: Clark Lovelace, MJ Gordon, Corey Gafnea

Guests Present: Karen Tessier, Nathan Jordan, Jonathan Griffin

Call to Order — Layton Parker
The meeting was called to order at 8:56 AM by Layton Parker.

Committee Updates —

Transylvania Always (Clark) — Clark updated, on behalf of chair Aaron Baker, about the
launch of the Leave It Better - Clean-up Crew program, the intention to have a waterfall
safety campaign for the 2021 busy season, and the continuing search for projects that align
with the TA mission. He asked for any comments and there was a conversation about what
our emergency responders need as it relates to training, education, or something very
specific. Two rescue squad responders died on a call to rescue a tourist. A conversation
was held about motorcycles, specifically adventure riders who ride on gravel roads as well
as Birmingham as a good cycling area to market our destination.

Marketing (Dee Dee) — Reminder to bring any marketing ideas to Dee Dee and to return
marketing surveys to Market Connections so they can incorporate that information into their
marketing plan, including locations to focus our marketing efforts. Bob Andrews in Lake
Toxaway will be stepping down from the Marketing Committee due to a relocation. Overall
the focus for the marketing committee will be to push harder for midweek stays during the
shoulder season and 7 days in off-season, a broader brand awareness with billboards, etc.
Outside the box thinking is welcomae.

Destination Infrastructure (Dee Dee) — TCT has supported a number of downtown
programs in the last six months. The DIC is also looking into bike racks and is staying in
tune with the PNF entrance roundabouts.

Marketing — Market Connections

Karen and Nathan provided an update on the FY21 marketing plan and asked questions to gain
information for putting together a recommended FY22 marketing plan. Among other things, the board
requested more emphasis than ever on marketing directed at midweek, the winter months, and longer
stays, not just weekend visitation. There was also a desire to build on the success of our digital efforts.

Finances — Layton Parker

Our overall financial picture is good. We are on pace for more than $1.4M in revenue for the year.
Note that while we ended up with $866,237 last year, we were on pace for $1.2M prior to the
pandemic. Our expenses will not match our year-end revenues, in part because of our cautious
budget, which was passed at the height of the impact on occupancy tax revenues, as well as the fact
that circumstances have not allowed for certain marketing efforts.




Annual budget:

The projected revenue for FY22 is $1.5M or more. On the macro level it will lead to a $900K marketing
plan, $300K to cover the Chamber of Commerce contract and basic overhead and $300K for grants,
Transylvania Always, and the Strategic Plan. That's all spending before we even touch our fund
balance.

Fund balance:

Our fund balance is likely to be $800,000 or more. Two years ago the target was 25% of the total
budget. That isn't the case now. What do we want to spend dollars on? What are the committed funds
or spends in the upcoming fiscal year? When we look at capital projects and big ticket dollars does the
money come from our fund balance or the budget, for example, $100K for the Ecusta Trail? A
discussion was held about any upcoming big city, state or county projects. Waiting on the County’s
master plan to review all capital projects, especially the land behind the Boys & Girls Club.

A discussion was held about progress of Ecusta Trail. The title work is almost complete and looking at
engineering costs. Roadside trash was also discussed with a desire to support a specific project,
perhaps one coming from the County.

Mac Morrow made a motion to go into a closed session for the purpose of discussing the
Chamber/TCT contract. Grant Bullock seconded. Motion passed unanimously.

Closed session began at 11:19. Close session ended at 12:09 and the board retreat resumed.

Meeting Adjourn

Dee Dee made a motion to adjourn at 12:09. Grant seconded. Motion passed.

Minutes respectfully submitted by Corey Gafnea



Transylvania County Tourism Development Authority
Minutes of 2/25/21 Closed Session lMeeting

Present: Grant Bullard, Layton Parker, Mac Morrow, Libby Freeman, David Guice, Dee Dee Perkins,
Ali Lien, Jessica Whitmire, Tracie Trusler

Absent: None

Staff Present: Clark Lovelace, MJ Gordon, Corey Gafnea

Guests Present: Jonathan Griffin

Call to Order ~ Layton Parker
The meeting was called to order at 11:19AM by Layton Parker.

Discussion

A discussion was held regarding the need to review the contract between the Chamber of Commerce
and Transylvania County Tourism for the term beginning on July 1, 2022. Now is the time to consider
all our options. Following discussion it was decided to continue the conversation at the next board
meeting.

David Guice made a motion to return to the retreat. Grant Bullard seconded. Motion passed.

Closed Session Adjourn
Meeting adjourned at 11:19

Minutes respectfully submitted by Corey Gafnea



M Gmail Clark Lovelace <clark@brevardncchamber.org>

March TCT Board Meeting Advance Packet

Clark Lovelace <clark@brevardncchamber.org>: Tue, Mar 23, 2021 at 4.05 PM
To: "Ali Lien (TCT)" <ali@explorebrevard.com>, "David Guice (TCT)" <david@expliorebrevard.com>, "Dee Dee Perkins
(TCT)" <dd@expiorebrevard.com>, "Grant Bullard (TCT)" <grant@explorebrevard.com>, "Jessica Whitmire (TCT)"
<jessica@explorebrevard.com>, "Layton Parker (TCT)" <layton@explorebrevard.com>, "Libby Freeman (TCT)"
<libby@sexplorebrevard.com>, "Mac Morrow (TCT)" <mac@explorebrevard.com>, Tracie Trusler
<iracie@explorebrevard.com> :

Cc: Corey Gafnea <corey@explorebrevard.com>, Mary Jo Gordon <mj@explorebrevard.com>, Jonathan Griffin
<Jonathan.Griffin@transylvaniacounty.org>

TCT Board,

Attached is a packet of information for our board mesting on Thursday, 3/23, virtually at 8:30am. As you'll note in the
agenda, the March meeting Is intended for continued conversation from the February retreat and does not include any
committee or Market Connections updates. Below is my director's report and further below is the zoom call in
information. Please email me and Corey if you are unable to attend or let me know If you have any questions on the
information in this email. See you on Thursday.

Director's Report

» Reopgning - There's definitely more movemant by most toward reopening than there was just a month ago at our
last meeting. From the PNF Ranger station a few weeks ago fo Marco's last week to the Pisgah Inn next week to
the Cradle of Forestry in a month, our partners are opening back up. The Govemor's Office announced the easing
of additional restrictions today as well. Along those lines, we're currently working on a plan to open up the insides
of the visiter center some time next month.

» Adventure Guide Re-prints - As a reminder, we had enough AGs left over from last year's printing of 115,000 to
get through the first haif of 2021. Rather than designing a new version for the last 8 months of the year and
dealing with a new slew of advertisements, we're simply re-printing 50,000 additional copies, with a few COVID-
based changes like a push to Explore Responsibility and wording about festivals. We also added info on our Leave
It Better initiative.

» Garbage Pick Up throughout Transylvanja - We have had a number of individuals ask if our new Clean-up Crew
program applied to roadside pickup, from Brevard Rotary to a County Commissioner to the TNRC. Since itis a
part of our Leave It Better effort specifically directed at appropriate behaviour In our public lands, it does not.
However, based on our various efforts to improve our destination over the last few years and some feedback from
board members, | had a conversation with Jaime Laughter expressing interest from TCT in supporting a project
that addressed this issue. | also had an email exchange with the TNRC board chair and Brevard Rotary president
where | shared the same sentiment. In the end, It is a similar message I've shared with many based on TCT's
desire to support (but not coordinate) various projects related to our Transylvanla Always and Destination
Infrastructure committees, as well as other strategic objectives. | thought it would be helpfui to share that message
with each of you. It is below. Let me know if any questions.

« Committee Report Schedule - As referenced above, no committees are scheduled to provide updates to the
board at this meeting. That said, | thought it would be a good time to confirm the schedule for the reminder of the
year.

o January - Market Connections, Transylvania Always

February (retreat) - All

March — None (retreat follow up)

April - Market Connections, Marketing

May — Finance, Destination Infrastructure

June - Market Connesctions, Transylvania Always

July — Nonhe

August - Market Connections, Destination Infrastructure

September - Transylvania Always

October - Market Connections, Marketing

Nov/Dec — Finance, Destination Infrastructure

Message Regarding Project/Initiatlve Support from TCT



Funding projects aligned with our objectives is one of the ways that TCT uses our funds to support our destination. While
we don't have a formal program, we have developed key parameters and request protocols over the years and share this
with local partners In hopes that they will reach out if they have something that may fit. We shared this with all who we
invited to our sustainability symposium last February as well as in other outreach to local partners over the last few years,
including the City of Brevard, Town of Rosman, and Transylvania County. Key information is as follows:

+ Unlike most who award grants, we put an emphasis on clear and concise information, not pages and pages of
fillers. With that in mind, we simply request a one to two page summary of your project, with any appropriate
backup information. It should include:

o A description of the project, including why/how it is relevant to tourism based on the first criteria below
o A timeline including the beginning and ending the project
o A hudget summary, including the total cost, the specific request from us, and where other funds are
coming from
o An indication of who is coordinating the project
o Ag you complete this information, it is worth noting that the following criteria are extremely important to TCT:
It is directly linked to tourism, either in bringing overnight visitors, making a substantial impact on the
tourlsm infrastructure of our destination, addressing user impact in our public lands, or creating
safe/enjoyable use of recreational assets
o ltis shovel-ready and will be completed within the next year
All funding is secured and it will begin soon after TCT awards funds
o There is a capable indlvidual or organization coordinating all aspects of the project.

-]

Zoom Information

Clark Lovelace is inviting you to a scheduled Zoom meeting.

Topic: TCT Board Meeting
Time: Mar 25, 2021 08:30 AM Eastern Time (US and Canada)

Every month on the Fourth Thu, until Oct 28, 2021, 8 occurrence(s)

Mar 25, 2021 08:30 AM

Apr 22, 2021 08:30 AM

May 27, 2021 08:30 AM

Jun 24, 2021 08:30 AM

Jul 22, 2021 08:30 AM

Aug 26, 2021 08:30 AM

Sep 23, 2021 08:30 AM

Oct 28, 2021 08:30 AM
Please download and import the following iCalendar (.ics) files to your calendar system.
Monthly: https://us02web.zoom.us/meeting/AZlsf-qopjwpHSbF 1ATjwh 1yrHFPX84x-zm8/ics?icsToken=
98tyKuGurzMpGtySsxyFRpwABYqgh_TxiGZegvpfuk7ENypEallLvJMpkAconRMCd

Joln Zoom Meeting
hitps:/fus02web.zoom.us/|/861830873527pwd=Y 1IpNkZ2SHI3RkZsb24yWUEWMWVYXZz00

Meeting ID: 861 8308 7352

Passcode: 924952

One tap mobile

+13017158592,,86183087352#,,,,924952# US (Washington DC}
+13126266799,,861830873524,,,,*924952# US (Chicago)

Dial by your location
+1 301 715 8592 US {(Washington DC)
+1 312 626 6799 US (Chicago)
+1 929 205 6098 US (New York)
+1 253 215 8782 US (Tacoma)
+1 346 248 7799 US (Houston)
+1 669 900 6833 US (San Jose)
Meeting ID: 861 8308 7352
Passcode: §24952
Find your local number: https://fus02web.zoom. usfu/kbFZQ8Juéz

Clark E. Lovelace
Executive Director



Brevard/Transylvanla Chamber of Commerce
Transylvanla County Tourism Development Authority

175 East Main St., Brevard NC, 28712

Chamber: 828-883-3700, brevardncchamber.org

TCTDA: 828-884-8900 / 800-648-4523, explorebrevard.com

6 attachments

'E TCTDA Agenda (3-25-21).pdf
135K

ﬂ TCTDA Board Meeting Minutes (February 25, 2021) .pdf
142K

ﬂ TCTDA Board Retreat Minutes (February 25, 2021) .pdf
126K

-E Occupancy Revenue (thru January, FY21).pdf
83K

by TCTDA Revenues & Expenditures (February, 2021).pdf
64K

R TCT Marketing Report - March (21).pdf
324K



Transylvania County Tourism Development Authority
Minutes of 3/25/21 Virtual Board Nieeting

Present: Grant Bullard, Layton Parker, Mac Morrow, Libby Freeman, David Guice, Dee Dee
Perkins, Ali Lien, Jessica Whitmire, Tracie Trusler

Absent: None

Staff Present: Clark Lovelace, MJ Gordon, Corey Gafnea

Guests Present: Karen Tessier, Nathan Jordan, Jonathan Griffin

Call to Order — Layton Parker
The meeting was called to order at 8:30 AM by Layton Parker.

Presentation of Minutes — Layton Parker

The minutes of the February 25, 2021 board meeting were presented for review by Layton
Parker. Libby Freeman made a motion to approve as presented. Dee Dee Perkins seconded.
Motion passed.

The minutes of the February 25, 2021 board retreat were presented for review by Layton Parker.
Libby Freeman made a motion to approve as presented. Jessica Whitmire seconded. Motion
passed.

Director’'s Report — Clark Lovelace

Financials — On the revenue side we continue the trend with record retums, mostly reflected in the
STR market. On the expense side, everything is in line although it looks like there will be unspent
dollars vs. what was budgeted in the grants and partnerships category. Dee Dee Perkins made a
motion to approve January financlals as presented. Grant Bullard seconded the motion. Motion
passed unanimously.

Clark indicated that Jonathan had reached out regarding TCT’s audit. Martin Stames (MS) has
made a proposal to conduct the annual audit at a cost of $6,000, the same price as 2020.
Transylvania County has agreed to have their audit performed by MS, creating various efficiencies.
Layton made a motion to move forward with MS as presented. David Guice seconded. Motion
passed unanimously.

Office Report and Tourlsm Updates — Clark asked for any questions on his director’s report that
was sent out with the advanced board packet. There were none.

Chair Report — Layton Parker
Chamber/TCT Contract — A discussion was held regarding the Chambet/TCT contract and the
structure of the two organizations moving forward. Clark shared a slide presentation that he and



Layton had created to cover the historical structure of the partnership, the factors that have
changed to lead to a need to make changes, and how to move forward in a collaborative way to
ensure the best outcome. Following discussion, it was determined that a voluntary group from
this board would get together and discuss next steps, likely connecting with representatives
from the Chamber board.

FY22 Budget - Layton shared a document with a sample budget for FY22 based on an
estimated year-end for FY21. He shared that budgseted revenues will likely be above $1.5M, our
largest ever by a considerable amount. He shared what that would likely mean for various
expense categories and noted that we would still have a substantial fund balance to consider as
well. The finance committee will present a budget at the May meeting.

Old Business

Clark met with the new hotel developer Tye Warren and Tye has met with the planning board.
Approval for the sale of the land has passed and the next step is to accept public comments
regarding the development.

New Business
None

Public Comment
None

Meeting Adjourn
Motion made to adjourn meeting at 10:29 by Libby. Seconded by David Guice. Motion passed.

Minutes respectfully submitted by Corey Gafnea



o CISRITELE I INE SR acas

SRy

8REVARD % E@E COUNTY

.}

TRANSYLVANIA COUNTY
TOURISM

Long-Term Structure Opportunities




RE OPPORTUNITIES

Discussion Points

BRIEF HISTORY OF OPERATIONAL STRUCTURAL

wiy RESTRUCTURING Is NEEDED FOR INCREASED FOCUS AND EFFECTIVENESS

IMPORTANCE OF DEVELOPING A NEW STRUCTURE WHILE MAINTAINING
STRONG RELATIONSHIPS wWITH CHAMBER & COUNTY

NEED FOR A SMOOTH TRANSITION FOR T
OF ALL THREE ORGANIZATIONS =




E OPPORTUNITIES BREVARD TRANSYLVANIA COUNY!

.}

Brief history of operational structure

o« THE TCTDA WAS ESTABLISHED AND A BOARD WAS CREATED IN 1986

e EVENTUALLY A PART-TIME DIRECTOR WAS HIRED AS A CONTRACT EMPLOYEE
REPORTING TO THE BOARD

o IN 1997, THE TCTDA BOARD ENGAGED IN A CONTRACT WITH THE B/T
: CHAMBER TO HANDLE OPERATIONS AND ADMINISTRATION )

SQNTRACT AMOUNT AND PERSONNEL REQUIRED TO FULFILETE HAVE
B0 SIGNIFICANTLY OVER THE YEARS & IR

febeeas? = —

SAME




B

E OPPORTUNITIES BREVARD " TRANSYLVANIA COUNTY

Curmrent Structure

THE CURRENT CONTRACT ESSENTIALLY HAS THREE ELEMENTS

1. STAFF TO OPERATE AND ADMINISTRATE TCT (CURRENTLY 50% DIRECTOR, 100%
OPERATIONS/PROJECTS, 100% MARKETING AND COMMUNICATION)

2. VISITOR CENTER OPERATIONS
OFFICE SPACE




PTURE OPPORTUNITIES

Why restructuring is needed for increased focus and
effectliveness

1. HISTORICAL GROWTH OF TCT FUNDING (FROM $350K 10 YEARS AGO TO
$1.5M+ THIS YEAR)

2. NEW INITIATIVES REQUIRE MORE RESOURCES AND OVERSIGHT
(TRANSYLVANIA ALWAYS AND DESTINATION INFRASTRUCTURE)

ADDITIONAL STRATEGIC PLAN OPPORTUNITIES ARE ARISING (ECUSTA
TRAIL, GROUPS/EVENTS)

TRANSYIVANIA COUNTY




z

BREVA
]

E OPPORTUNITIES i) SV

Imporiance of developing a new structure while
maintaining sirong relationships with Chamber & County

1. EARLY AND REGULAR CONVERSATIONS WITH PARTNERS

2. NEW STRUCTURE LIKELY DOESN'T CHANGE ANY ELEMENTS OF
RELATIONSHIP WITH COUNTY

NEW STRUCTURE LIKELY MAINTAINS TWO OF THREE ELEMENTS OF
RRENT CONTRACT (VISITOR CENTER AND OFFICE SPACE




W —Nm.{) Z D TRANSYLVANIA COU z_

E OPPORTUNITIES

Need for a smooth fransition for the benefit of all three
organizations

1. DETERMINE OPTIMAL TIME-LINE FOR TCT AND CHAMBER

2. SUPPORT CHAMBER FINANCIALLY AND ORGANIZATIONALLY DURING
TRANSITION

TCT/CHAMBER/COUNTY WORK CLOSELY TOGETHER TO
OMMUNICATE THE SAME POSITIVE MESSAGE TO OUR COMMU$ Y —

EREeRl e e




M Gmail Clark Lovelace <clark@brevardncchamber.org>

April TCT Board Meeting Packet

Clark Lovelace <clark@brevardnecchamber.org> Tue, Apr 20, 2021 at 8:20 PM
To: "Ali Lien (TCT)" <ali@explorebrevard.com>, "David Guice (TCT)" <david@explorebrevard.com>, “Dee Dee Perkins
(TCT)" <dd@explorebrevard.com=>, "Grant Bullard (TCT)" <grant@explorebrevard.com>, "Jassica Whitmire (TCT)"
<jessica@explorebrevard.com>, "Layton Parker (TCT)" <layton@explorebrevard.com>, "Libby Freeman (TCT)"
<libby@explorebrevard.com>, "Mac Morrow (TCT)" <mac@explorebrevard.com>, Tracie Trusler
<tracie@explorebrevard.com>

Cc: Corey Gafnea <corey@explorebrevard.com>, Mary Jo Gordon <mj@explorebrevard.com>, Jonathan Griffin
<Jonathan.Griffin@transylvaniacounty.org>, Nathan Jordan <NJordan@mktconnections.com>, Karen Tessler
<ktegsler@mkiconnections.com>

TCT Board,

Aftached Is the board packet for our meeting on Thursday, 4/22, virtually at 8:30am. Below is my director's report and
further below is the zoom call in information. Be sure to use this zoom information for the meeting. It is different from last
week's meeting reminder email. Please email me and Corey if you are unable to attend or let me know if you have any
questlons on the information in this email. See you on Thursday.

Director's Report

« Reonpening.- The Visitor Center is now open on the inside, with access through the front and back. The seated
area is still closed off. Just before the pandemic we agreed to be the official home of the White Squirrel
Institute. It never got started. It really just entails a table with some set up, including a Dipjar device for running
credit cards to "adopt” a squirrel. On our end, we're adding a web page and mentioning it in a few spots,
providing some cute cachet. We have a temporary spot now and will make it permanent when we open up the
full downstairs. We're adding a few other items to enhance the visitor center experience and/or draw a few
more folks.

« New Tourism Businesses - The former Hobnob location is opening as a sweets and bakery called Stella's
Sweet Boutique. | hear they'll have desserts and beer/wine. The former Magpie Meat & Three location has new
owners (who also have Honey and Salt in Hendersonville) that will do breakfast and lunch. Click here for more.
If you recall | mentioned a while back that someone was acquiring the Deerwood property. They have closed on
the deal. The owners are Dionne and Scott Hodgson and they are calling it Deerwoode Reserve. Below is a
message from Dlonne giving some info. I've been out and spoken with Dionne a number of times. ['m excited.

» Committee Report Schedyla - Il try to remind in the advance packet who's up for the current meeting and
who's up for the next one. This Thursday ls the marketing committee and Market Connections. Next month are
the finance and destination infrastructure committees.

Message from Dionne Hodgson w/Deerwoode:

Woe are so excited about owning this Deerwoode property and everyday we learn more and more about it and the
history, which [s just amazing! We look forward to meeting all of you in person and joining the community very soon.
We'll be moving when school gets out in June.

It's definitely going to be a process to get everything up and running and start making important connections. We
currently have 6 cabins ready to rent and will be working on several more existing ones, to remodel and update them,
to have ready hopefully later this year. We have plans to transform the oid gym on-site into an events center, which will
have both indoor and outdoor space to host weddings, parties, business retreats & meetings, fundraisers, etc. Then
we also have plans to build up to 10 more new cabins. The property Itself is such a unique blend of pasture, mountain,
ponds, river frontage - with trails all over the property along with & bamboo forest - that we can have on-site recreation
for fishing, canoeing, hiking, biking and more. The land is under consarvation easement and we will offer educational
opportunities through Conserving Carolina for volunteers and students.

There are so many possibllites ahead and we are looking forward to connecting with all of you and sharing this
property with visitors and the local community.

I've been looking over the two agencies and will connect with those staff members Individually to get started.

Thank you all for helping us fael welcomel



Clark Lovelaca is inviting you to a scheduled Zoom meeting.

Topic: TCT Board Meeting
Time: Apr 22, 2021 08:30 AM Eastern Time (US and Canada)

Every month on the Fourth Thu, untll Oct 28, 2021, 7 occurrence(s)

Apr 22, 2021 08:30 AM

May 27, 2021 08:30 AM

Jun 24, 2021 08:30 AM

Jul 22, 2021 08:30 AM

Aug 26, 2021 08:30 AM

Sep 23, 2021 08:30 AM

Oct 28, 2021 08:30 AM
Please download and import the following iCalendar (.ics) files to your calendar system.
Monthly: https:/fus02web.zoom.us/meeting/tZIsf-qopjwpHSbF 1ATjwh1yrHFPX84x-zm8/ics ?ics Token=
98tyKuGurzMpGtySsxyFRpwABYqgb_TxiGZegvpfuk7ENypEalLvJMpkAoonRMCd

Join Zoom Meeting
https://us02web.zoom.us/}/861830873527pwd=Y1IpNkZ2SHI3RkZsb24yWUEWMW\VXZz09

Meeting ID: 861 8308 7352

Passcode: 924952

One tap mobile

+13017158592,,86183087352#,,,,924952# US (Washington DC)
+13126266799,,661830873524#,,,,*924952# US (Chlcago)

Dial by your location
+1 301 715 8592 US (Washington DC)
+1 312 626 6792 US (Chicago)
+1 920 205 6098 US {New York)
+1 253 215 8782 US (Tacoma)
+1 346 248 7789 US (Houston)
+1 669 900 6833 US (San Jose)
Meeting 1D; 861 8308 7352
Passcode: 924952 .
Find your local number: https://fus02web.zoom.us/u/kbFZQ8Juéz

Clark E. Lovelace

Executive Director

Brevard/Transylvania Chamber of Commerce
Transylvania County Tourlsm Development Authority

175 East Maln St., Brevard NC, 28712

Chamber: 828-883-3700, brevardncchamber.org

TCTDA: 828-884-8900 / 800-648-4523, explorebrevard.com

5 attachments

ﬂ TCTDA Agenda {4-22-21).pdf
131K

ﬂ TCTDA Board Meeting Minutes (March 25, 2021) .pdf
143K

'E TCTDA Revenues & Expenditures (March, 2021).pdf
37K



'E g:;upancy Revenue (thru February, FY21).pdf

ﬂ TCT Marketing Report - April {21).pdf
229K



Transylvania County Tourism Development Authority Minutes
of 4/22/21 Virtual Board Meeting

Present: Grant Bullard, Layton Parker, Libby Freeman, David Guice, Dee Dee Perkins, Ali Lien,
Jessica Whitmire, Tracie Trusler

Absent: Mac Morrow

Staff Present: Clark Lovelace, MJ Gordon, Corey Gafnea

Guests Present: Karen Tessier, Nathan Jordan, Jonathan Griffin, Kate Hayes

Call to Order — Layton Parker
The meeting was cailed to order at 8:31 AM by Layton Parker.

Presentation of Minutes — Layton Parker

The minutes of the March 25, 2021 board meeting were presented for review by Layton Parker.
Dee Dee Perking made a motion to approve as presented. Grant Bullard seconded. Motion
passed.

Director’'s Report — Clark Lovelace

Financials — Revenues continue to trend beyond prior records for each month. Year-end is headed
toward well over $1.5M. Most expenses are close to budgeted amounts, with grants and
parinership funding slated to fall balow. Clark sent an updated version of the sample budget from
our iast meeting fo the finance committee and we'll work together to present a budget at our next
board meeting. Jessica Whitmire made a motion to approve March financials as presented. David
Guice seconded the motion. Motion passed unanimously.

Office Report and Tourism Updates ~ Clark asked for any questions on his director's report that
was sent out with the advanced board packet. There were none. He highlighted a few items. The
proposed downtown hotel project should close the deal soon with the City of Brevard. TCT is
working to provide images to wrap downtown electrical traffic boxes.

There is a request from Brevard Music Center for $6,500 for a similar package as in the past. We
have typically considered this as part advertising and part partner support. The request was
reviewed with Market Connections they feel it has promotional value. Jessica suggested adding
Leave It Better and Waterfall Safety messaging. Funding would come from the partnership support
line item in the budget. Jessica made a motion to fund the partner support request from BMC. Dee
Dee seconded the motion. Motion passed unanimously.

MJ discussed the upcoming brewery PR visit as well as the Chasing Waterfalls (a group of Black
women from Atlanta, #blackfacesingreenspaces) visit. Clark will be out for the June meeting. TCT
Board meetings will continue to be virtual for a few more months.



Chair Report — Layton Parker

Chamber/TCT Contract Update — There was a meeting between a few members of the TCT
and Chamber boards a couple of weeks ago. This was the first joint meeting and quite a bit was
covered, mostly general in nature. The Chamber wants some time to research their options for
moving forward. Both parties agreed that the county is an important part of this as well. A
meeting is scheduled next week for Layton and Clark to meet with Jaime Laughter, David Guice,
and Jason Chappell.

Ecusta Trail - Clark spoke with Chris Burns, who is a Friends of the Ecusta Trail board member
and one of the primary people who's been working on making the trail happen. They have asked
the HCTDA for 1% for the next five years (and have a tentative yes) and will be presenting to
the Henderson C commissioners in a couple of weeks. They then plan on asking us for 1% for
the next five years. 1% of 5% would be 20% of our total budget. One option is to increase the
occupancy rate from 5% to 6%, which has been approved by the state but will have to be
approved by the County Commissioners. Clark will invite Chris Burns to the May meeting.

UTV Legislatlon - There is legislation in the NC General Assembly that would allow UTVs to be
ridden/driven on highways. This could have an impact in Transylvania County.

Marketing Update — Dee Dee Perkins and Market Connections

Kat Warner with BMC is new to the committee. Bob Andrews is moving from the area and has
left the committee. Lydia O'dell is the other community member. We typically have 2 or 3, so
we're open to one more if there are any suggestions, but fine with just 2. At the last meeting we
discussed themes for the FY22 marketing plan. Market Connections will create a plan based on
that conversation and present it to the Marketing committee next month. A final version will be
presented with this board at the May meeting. The plan will be the largest in our history, by far,
at $1M or more. It will include a market study and multi-year marketing plan, a new website,
more digital advertising than ever, and focus on generating room nights during slower times.

Old Business
None

New Business

Corey mentioned that Camp & Major Events Calendar is being created and published on our
website with an email to our partners. MJ shared that she is creating a Camper Parent sheet with
clickable links for each camp in Transylvania County to encourage the parents to stay and play
here,

Public Comment
Ncne

Meeting Adjourn

Motion made to adjourn meeting at 9:47 by Dee Dee . Seconded by David Guice. Motion passed.

Minutes respectfully submitted by Corey Gafnea



M Gmail Clark Lovelace <clark@brevardncchamber.org>

TCT Board Meeting Packet

Clark Lovelace <clark@brevardnecchamber.org> Tue, May 25, 2021 at 8:24 PM
To: "Ali Lien {TCT)" <all@explorebrevard.com>, "David Guice (TCT)" <david@explorebrevard.com>, "Dee Dee Perkins
(TCT)" <dd@explorebrevard.com>, "Grant Bullard (TCT)" <grant@explorebrevard.com>, "Jessica Whitmire (TCT)"
<jessica@explorebrevard.com>, "Layton Parker (TCT)" <layton@explorebrevard.com>, "Libby Freeman (TCT)"
<libby@explorebrevard.com>, "Mac Morrow (TCT)" <mac@explorebrevard.com>, Tracie Trusler
<tracie@explorebrevard.com> '

Cc: Corey Gafnea <corey@explorebrevard.com>, Mary Jo Gordon <mj@explorebrevard.com>, Jonathan Griffin
<Jonathan.Griffin@transylvaniacounty.org>

TCT Board,

Our May board meeting Is this Thursday, May 27, at 8:30am. It is virtual. Zoom information can be found at the bottom of
this email. Directly below Is a director's report and attached Is the normal packet of information, plus a number of
additional items. There's a lot to digest here and a lot of content to be covered at the meeting. Please read

everything and let me know If any questions. If you're unable to attend, please emall me and Corey.

Director's Report

» FY22 Budget - In addltion to April financials, attached is a tentative budget that is recommended by the finance
committese, It will be covered at the meeting.

* French Broad River Debrls Removal - Jessica brought a request to us for $10,000 to deal with stralners and
blockages in the FBR. The $25,000 from the county has been depleted and there are a number of items that need
to be addressed. Attached is an email from Jeff Parker, District Director for the Transylvania Soil & Water.

» Blke Repailr Statlon - We're recommending a bike repair staticn in the Visitor Center parking lot. Detalls are
attached.

+ Veterans History Museum of the Carolina's Request - Museum board mamber Larry Chapman sent the
following request, "What is the procedure to get on the agenda of the TDA Board meeting? We at the Veterans
History Museum of the Carolinas would like to address the TDA Board to review all the things that the Museum
does that substantiality brings more visitors and tourist fo our community. My guess the Museum gets more visitors
than just about anything else in the community except maybe the music center. We will adjust our presentation to
the amount of time allowed. | have no idea how many of our the TDA Board members have ever visited the
Museum or know all the things we bring to the community. We would be willing to open our doors specifically for
you and set up tables for your Board mesting if you would llke a change in scenery. Thanks."

o TCT / Chamber Contract - Layton will provide an update at the meeting. In the meantime, | forward an email from
County Manager Jaime Laughter providing some input based on research by her staff and others.

+ FY22 Marketing Plan - The marketing commlttee is recommending a plan for board approval. Market
Connections will be at the meeting to cover key information and answer questions. Attached are three documents
for your review. First is a highlight of key changes and additions in the new plan. Next is a side by side
comparison to FY21. Third is the full plan. It Is a lot to digest, so you may choose to focus on the first two.

» Ecusta Trall - Three individuals connected with the trail will be at our mesting to provide an update and make a
request for funding from TCT. This is not for public consumption yet, but they have indicated that the HCTDA
recently approved allocating 1% of their funds for five years to the Ecusta Trail. To be clear, this Is 1% of their 5%
or 20% of their total revenues. They will make a similar request to the TCTDA.

» TCT Grant Program - Earlier this week, the grant committee approved a $3,000 grant for updating (including
copy/photos for 5 new sculptures) and printing of 2,500 brochures for the Brevard Scuipture Walk brochure,

» Waterfall Safety - You should have received our Be Waterfall Wise press release earller today. Other materials
are being finalized and you'll soon see an add in the TTimes, along with an insert, and more.

» Visitor Center - The inside of the Visitor Center is now fully open. We've added a few new items and twists,

including a souvenir penny smasher, an area as the home of the White Squirrel Institute, and an updated kids

cornar with games and cother items related to "trashquatch” (a trash + sasquatch image that is a part of our "Leave

It Better" program). Hours are still 10a-4p (M-F) and 10a-2p (Sat) due te volunteer staffing limitations.

Locaj Tourism Update -

o As I'm sure you know or are experiencing, everyones is struggling harder than ever to find employees. Many
restaurants have reduced hours only because they can't find staff.

o Things are ramping up in our public lands. The TAC hosted Dave Casey with PNF and Jane Dauster with
DSRF to talk about issues and update each other on what's going on. We're all expecting the busiest



summer for our public lands ever.

o BMC Is expanding capacity and their schedule.

¢ The Transylvania Times sold. | met with Leigh Trapp and new publisher Sharon Sorg this afternoon. She is
focused first on letting everyone know that they value the role of the paper in our community, which is why
they acquired it and they want to continue the great work of the paper, not change it.

| think that covers everything for now. As always, let me know if any questions,

Clark Lovelace is inviting you to a scheduled Zoom meeting.

Topic: TCT Board Meeting
Time: May 27, 2021 08:30 AM Eastern Time (US and Canada)

Every month on the Fourth Thu, until Oct 28, 2021, 8 occurrence(s)

May 27, 2021 08:30 AM

Jun 24, 2021 08:30 AM

Jul 22, 2021 08:30 AM

Aug 26, 2021 08:30 AM

Sep 23, 2021 08:30 AM

Oct 28, 2021 08:30 AM
Please download and import the following iCalendar (.ics) files to your calendar system.
Monthly: hitps://us02web.zoom.us/meeting/tZlsf-qopjwpHObF 1ATjwh 1yrHFPX84x-zm8/ics ?ics Token=
98tyKuGurzMpGtySsxyFRpwABYqgb_TxiGZegvpfuk7ENypEalLvJMpkAoconRMCd

Join Zoom Meeting
hitps://us02web.zoom.us/j/86183087352?pwd=Y 1lpNkZ2SHI3RkZsb24yWUEWMWVXZ209

Meeting ID: 861 8308 7352

Passcode: 924952

One tap mobils

+13017158592,,86183087352#,,,,*924852# US (Washington DC)
+13126266799,,86183087352#,,,,“024852# US (Chicago)

Dial by your location
+1 301 715 8592 US (Washington DC)
+1 312 626 6799 US (Chicago)
+1 929 205 6099 US (New York)
+1 253 215 8782 US (Tacoma)
+1 346 248 7799 US (Houston)
+1 669 900 6833 US (San Jose)
Meeting ID: 861 8308 7352
Passcode: 924952
Find vour local number: hitps:/fus02web.zoom.us/u/kbFZQ8Jubz

Clark E. Lovelace

Executive Director

Brevard/Transylvania Chamber of Commerce
Transylvania County Tourlsm Development Authority

175 East Main St., Brevard NC, 28712

Chamber: 828-883-3700, brevardncchamber.org

TCTDA: 828-884-8900 / 800-648-4523, explorebrevard.com

BREVARD,
E .
10 attachments
ﬂ TCTDA Agenda (5-27-21).pdf
135K

TCTDA Board Meeting Minutes (April 22, 2021) .pdf



0 166K

-B TCTDA Revenues & Expenditures (April, 2021).pdf
38K

ﬂ Occupancy Revenus (thru March, FY21).pdf
84K

ﬂ TCTDA Revenues & Expenditures (Projected FY21 YE and Proposed FY22 Budget).pdf
34K

ﬂ French Broad River Debris Removal (5-20-21).pdf
59K

ﬂ Bike Fixit Station at Visitor Center (5-1-21) - Product Description.pdf
1912K

m 2022 TDA Marketing Plan Highlightsdocx.pdf
108K

b X TCT FY21 AND FY22 MARKETING BUDGET COMPARISONS.pdf
116K

ﬂ TCT FY22 Full Marketing Plan.pdf
310K



Gmail Clark Lovelace <clark@brevardncchamber.org>

Fwd: TDA/Chamber Structure discussion

Clark Lovelace <clark@brevardncchamber.org> . . Wed, May 26, 2021 at 8:00 AM
To: "Ali Llen (TCT)" <ali@explorebrevard.com®, "David Guice (TCT)" <david@explorebrevard.com>, "Dee Dee Perkins
(TCT)" <dd@explorebrevard.com>, "Grant Bullard (TCT)" <grani@explorebrevard.com>, "Jessica Whitmire (TCT)"
<jessica@explorebrevard.com>, "Layton Parker (TCT)" <layton@explorebrevard.com>, "Libby Freeman (TCT)"
<libby@explorebrevard.com>, "Mac Morrow (TCT)" <mac@explorebrevard.com>, Tracie Trusler :
<tracie@explorebrevard.com> ‘ .

Cc: Corey Gafnea <corey@explorebrevard.com>, Mary Jo Gordon <mj@explorebrevard.com>, Jonathan Griffin
<Jonathan.Griffin@transylvaniacounty.org> ' '

. As mentioned in last night's emall,

Clark E. Lovelace
Executive Director
Brevard/Transylvania Chamher of Commerce .
Transylvanila County Tourism Pevelopment Authority
175 East Main St., Brevard NC, 28712
Chamber: 828-883-3700, brevardncchamber.org
. TCTDA: 828-884-8900 / 800-648-4523, explorebrevard.com

bl BREVARD

. ——weme FOrwarded message —-----
From: Jaime Laughter <jaime.laughter@transylvaniacounty.org>
Date: Mon, May 24, 2021 at 12:49 PM
Subject: TDA/Chamber Structure discussion - ,
To: Clark Lovelace <clark@brevardncchamber.org>, Jeff Joyce <|oyceji@brevard.edu>, layton@comporium.net
<layton@comporium.net> - - ' ' '
'Cc: David Guice <David.Guice@transylvaniacounty.org>, Jason Chappell <jason.chappell@transylvaniacounty.org>,
Jonathan Griffin <Jonathan.Griffin@transylvaniacounty.org>

Good afternoon!

| know the TDA board is discussing their structure and that the chamber board is also involved in that to see if the TDA
intends to keep the current relationship with the Chamber. | have had the opportunity to talk to leadership of both
organizations to make sure that you are aware of the need to make sure that the public funding piece on behalf of the
county is managed correctly and that we are.all-on the same page regarding the responsibilities that come with those
public funds. We have had staff gathering information on other TDA arrangements and working with the auditor and
Gounty attomey so that we can clearly. articulate what would need to occur with the options being discussed and make
gure we are transparent on the reasons for those requirements. -~ . .

There are two optldns that the county would support, but each have some considerations that need to be factored in:

1. TDA continues the contract with the Chamber to provide staffing. (Note: this, in theory, could also be a different
established entity, but the same notes below wouid apply)



a. The agreement needs to be updated to clearly cover llabllity and some other deficiencies from a contract
standpoint .

b. Will need to.include that the TDA revenue into the chamber cannot be more than 50% of the revenue. We
have to be able to ensure that the Chamber Is not dependent on public dollars.

¢. The agreement language will need to clearly articulate that the chamber board is the hire/fira authonty over
staff and directing staff. This clarifies that the TDA Board of Directars, a public body, does not direct or
control chamber staff and the chamber staff work first and foremaost for the chamber. This is important to
show the chamber is not being controlled by a public entity which could make them public and not nonprofit.

d. Include Ianguage that there cannot be voting members on botti boards. This also makes it clear that the

. TDA s not in control of the Chamber.

e. TDA can pay market rent, but cannot otherwise offset or contribute to the Chamber’s debt on the building.

2. TDA staff become county staff, market lease space from the chamber

a. The agreement would be a léase agreement for space (still can't be 50% or greater of chamber revenue)

b. Wa would need to work on how staff transitioned (ie, compensation plan, health, retirement plan etc) We do
not have a sense on how this would impact those staff positively or negatively) .

¢ Would increase work for county staff HR, administration, payroll, etc. Could offset with some of the TDA
funds to help cover those impacts, but would ultimately be more to manage

d. This could be a challenge for the chamber. When we became aware of discussions between the chamber
and TDA, the conversation had already begun on that front.

A third option that has been floated includes a 501-c type nonprofit organization incorporated for tourism, but the county
attormey, auditor and staff feel like that is not in anyone's best interest including the TDA/county for the following reasons:

a. For the TDA board of directors to operate an Independent organlzation financed with public funds (occupancy
taxes), it is still basically a County organization and all the same rules would apply as option 2 since the majority of

. funds would be public.

b. The administrative responsibility Is more complex without much benefit - it's still a County crganization but without
a direct link {o the County, so county finance would have to run two sets of books — one for the County and one for
the 501c.

Jonathan Griffin is the finance director for both the county and the TDA.  He is prepared to discuss with any of you or
present the information from the research and analysls to help inform the declsion. Our key Interest is in making sure that
the public funds are managed under the statutes and that all partles understand the responsibllities that come with the
funds. | have not gotten any feedback that would indicate a preference between the two options from commissionets.,

Let me know if thare are any questions and we will get answers for youl We did have the proposed one year agreement
reviewed by the county atiomey. While it does not address all of the issues listed in #1 that we wouid need to address
like the 50% revenue threshold, it would give both organizations time to map out how to achieve an agreement within the
parameters to enter into a year renewal with the additlonal liability language from the attorney with the goal of having
everything lined up by this time next year that would address the component unit issue and protect all parties’ interests.

Have a graat weak!

Jaime



Transylvania County Tourism Development Authority
Minutes of 6/27/21 Virtual Board Meeting

Present: Grant Bullard, Layton Parker, Libby Freeman, David Guice, Dee Dee Perkins, Ali Lien,
Jessica Whitmire, Tracie Trusler

Absent: Mac Morrow

Staff Present: Clark Lovelace, MJ Gordon, Corey Gafnea

Guests Present: Karen Tessier, Jonathan Griffin

Call to Order — Layton Parker
The meeting was called to order at 8:32 AM by Layton Parker.

Presentation of Minutes — Layton Parker

The minutes of the April 22, 2021 board meeting were presented for review by Layton Parker.
Dee Dee Perkins made a motion to approve as presented. Grant Bullard seconded. Motion
passed,

Director’s Report — Clark Lovelace

Financials — Revenues continue to trend way above expectations with year-end well over budget.
With the exception of our tourism grant program, which is well below, expenses are in line to finish
at or close to budgeted amounts. Dee Dee Perkins made a motion to approve April financials as
presented. Ali Lien seconded the motion. Motion passed unanimously.

Funding Requests

As covered in your advance packet, Jeff Parker, the Regional Director for NC Soil and Water, made
a requast for $10K for debris removal as they finish out a year with greater floods and have
depleted the $25K funding from the county for this purpose. After a discussion, Grant Bullard
indicated that he felt this was a tourism-related expenditure that achieved our sustainability
objectives and made a motion to fund the $10K request with funds from the strategic plan expense
category. Ali Lien seconded the motion. Motion passed unanimously.

Also as covered in your advance packet, staff has been working on a plan to support visitors and
create vibrancy to the visitor center and have a plan for a bike repair station coordinated by the
Chamber with a $2,000 grant from TCT. After discussion, Dee Dee Perkins stated that she felt the
bike repair station was tourism-related, meeting our goal of supporting cycling infrastructure, and
made a motion to approve the request for $2,000 with funds coming from the strategic pian
expense category. Tracie Trusler seconded the motion. Motion passed unanimously.

Office Report and Tourlsm Updates

Larry Chapman would like to do a presentation about the Veterans History Museum of the
Carolinas. He also offered the museum as a meeting space for a future in-person TCTDA board
meeting, if we'd like. A decision was made to invite him to the July meeting and for each board
member to commit to visit the museum in June.



Chair Report — Layton Parker

Chamber/TCT Contract Update — Clark sent out a letter from Jaime Laughter regarding the
Chamber/TCT Contract in advance of the board meeting. Leadership at the County, TCT, and
the Chamber all understand the need for dedicated leadership at TCT and are working hard on
due diligence and research to find the best path forward. This will not be a quick process.

Layton indicated that since our guests are here we should move forward to the marketing plan
followed by the Ecusta Trail presentation and then return to the chair report and cover the FY22
budget.

FY22 Marketing Plan — Dee Dee Perkins and Market Connections
Dee Dee shared that this plan was covered in detail with the marketing committee, whose job is
to dive deep and vet the plan. She thanked Market Connections (MC) for the hard work that
goes into the report and the committee and staff for their diligence in reviewing. She asked
Karen to cover the highlights.

Karen highlighted the documents that were sent in advance, focusing on differences from the
prior two years and major iftems like the development of biking and arts/culture sub-brands, a
new website, market research, and a multi-year market plan. Clark reminded that the board is
not being asked to say “yes" to everything within the plan right now, but is being asked to
approve the total amount and the basics of the plan. Staff and the marketing committee will
work with MC throughout the year and additional approvals are required for certain items,
particularly big-ticket items: like the new website, which will likely require an RFP process. Karen
answered a few questions and indicated being available after the meeting for any additional
guestions.

Layton suggested that we discuss approval of this when we cover the FY22 budget.

Ecusta Trail Presentation — Chris Burns, Page Lemel, Tad Fogel
Chris Burns provided a detailed presentation covering the history of the Ecusta Trail, cost
estimates, benefit projections, current challenges, and a path toward completion. In the end, he
requested that TCTDA provide 1/5 of their annual revenues (1% of the 5%) for a period of five
years to support the completion of the trail. He indicated that the HCTDA recently voted to do

" the same with their funds and stated that our investment would make the Transylvania portion
come to life.

Chair Report — Layton Parker (continued)

FY22 Budget - The FY22 budget is based on a conservative 5% annual growth rate over
projected year-end for FY21. The plan is to have expenditures match anticipated revenue.
Layton reviewed the proposed budget, answering questions as he did.

Jonathan noted that a public hearing will need to be set up prior to approving the budget. He will
get with Clark on specific wording and one will be set up for the June 24 board meeting.

Layton asked that we return to the FY22 marketing plan in the advance packet and reviewed by
Karen. Dee Dee Perkins made a motion to approve the FY22 marketing plan as presented.
Grant Bullard seconded. Motion passed unanimously.

Old Business
It was decided that for the next few months we will keep our meetings virtual.

New Business



Staff is reviewing the grant application process and will be working to create one grant form with
three different paths. The goal is for the grant application process to be finalized and in place by
July 1, 2021.

Karen Tessier let everyone know that Nathan Jordan would be leaving Market Connections in July
to start his own photo and video business. They are in the process of hiring a new creative director.

Dee Dee Perkins announced that she has announced her candidacy for Mayor of Brevard.

Public Comment
Nene

Meeting Adjourn
Motion made to adjourn the meeting at 11:04 by Layton Parker. Seconded by Libby Freeman.
Motion passed.

Minutes respectfully submitted by Corey Gafnea



L]
M Gmall Clark Lovelace <clark@brevardncchamber.org>

June TCT Board Meeting

Clark Lovelace <clark@brevardncchamber.org> Tuse, Jun 22, 2021 at 6:39 PM
To: "Ali Lien (TCT)" <ali@explorebrevard.com>, "David Guice (TCT)" <david@explorebrevard.com>, "Dee Dee Perkins
(TCT)" <dd@explorebrevard.com>, "Grant Bullard (TCT)" <grant@explorebrevard.com>, "Jessica Whitmire (TCT)"
<jessica@explorebrevard.com>, "Layton Parker (TCT)" <layton@explorebrevard.com>, "Libby Freeman (TCT)"
<libby@explorebrevard.com>, "Mac Momrow (TCT)" <mac@explorebrevard.com>, Tracie Trusler
<tracie@explorebrevard.com>

Cc: Corey Gafnea <corey@explorebravard.com>, Mary Jo Gordon <mj@explorebrevard.com>, Jonathan Griffin
<Jonathan.Griffin@transylvaniacounty.org>, Nathan Jordan <NJordan@mktconnactions.com>, Karen Tessier
<ktessler@mbktconnections.com>

TCT Board,

Our June board meeting Is this Thursday, June 24, at 8:30am. It Is virtual. Zoom information can be found at the bottom
of this email. Directly below is a director's report and attached is the normal packet of information, plus a number of
additional items. Flease read everything and let me know if you have any questions. If you're unable to attend, please
email me and Corey.

Director's Report

+ FY22 Budget - We have a public hearing on our FY22 budget at this meeting. | will review the same budget
that was covered at our last meeting and ask for any questions/comments from the board. Layton can then direct
any members of the public to provide up to three minutes of public comment. This is not a Q&A, but instead an
opportunity for members of the public to provide input to be considered by the board. Consideration of a motion to
approve can occur in Layton's section.

» Ecusta Trall - There will be a follow up conversation on the trail at the board meeting. Here is an article sharing
notable action at last night's city council meeting.

= Funding Requests - There are a few funding requests that will be presented to the board with committee
recommendations at the meeting. It is worth noting that these have been discussed and vetted by one of our
committees and are coming with a recommendation. In the case of the Transylvania Always Committes, they
typically approve their own projects based on the amount budgeted to our TA efforts each year. This past year's
budget of $75,000 has been spent (a lot with our Be Waterfall Wise campaign and 1/2 of the river study isn't
reflected in the May financlals), which is why this is coming as a recommendation to the full board. In any case,
our process Is set up to have committeas do the deep dive with 8 recommendation, so the attached information Is
for you to view at your discretion. On a final note, as a reminder, we are working on a grant application that
applies for any type of request so there is consistency as the committees or board reviews and makes decisions.
Here's a recap of the current requests:

o Triple Falls Consultation ($2,600) - Recommended for approval by TAC,

o Black Mountain Trailhead Project ($30,000) - Recommended for approval by TAC. Note the link in the
request to detailed drawings.

o LED Strest Light Project ($3,000) - Recommended for approval by DIC.,

 Local Toyrism Update -

o Businesses continue to report major challenges with finding workers, particularly in the tourism industry.
Many have limited hours due to the shortage. NC Works and the Chamber hosted a job fair and the
Mountain Area Workforce Development Board hosted a $17 and up fair. Attendance was sparse at the one
in Brevard. Not sure about the other. Additionally, here are results of a recent Chamber survey of
businesses on the current workforce shortage.

o We removed the phone that was at the PNF ranger station which dlaled directly into our visitor canter.
Managemaent at the ranger station recommended removal. On our end, we mostly experlenced calls from
kids messing around, so it seemed unnecessary. We're chacking with Dupont (DSF) on the one at their
visitor center.

o As of this week, the DSF visitor center is open with limited hours.

Riverfest this past weskend went well. Corey made the rounds, We were the lead sponsor,

o Fireworks are occurring on July 4th near downtown, but most of the other "normal” offerings around that
holiday, specifically any connected to the July 4th festival, are not. It's also on a Sunday when many’
restaurants are closed. We are adjusting the hours of our visitor center. It will be an interesting weskend.
Hopefully most who play in our public lands are aware of our waterfall safety and leave it better messaging.



i : as = At our last meeting the board decided to
schedule a presentatlon by the museum at the July meetmg and agk each board member to visit the museum
before that meeting, particularly if you've never been or haven't been in awhile. This is simply a reminder.

| think that covers everything for now. As always, let me know if any questions.

Clark Lovelace Is inviting you to a scheduled Zoom mesting.

Topic: TCT Board Meeting
Time: Jun 24, 2021 08:30 AM Eastern Time (US and Canada)

Every month on the Fourth Thu, until Oct 28, 2021, 5 occurrence(s)

Jun 24, 2021 08:30 AM

Jul 22, 2021 08:30 AM

Aug 26, 2021 08:30 AM

Sep 23, 2021 08:30 AM

Oct 28, 2021 08:30 AM
Please download and import the following iCalendar (.ics) files to your calendar system.
Monthly: hitps://us02web.zoom.us/meeting/tZlsf-qopjwpHSbF 1ATjwh 1yrHFPX84x-zm8/ics ?ics Token=
98tyKuGurzMpGtySsxyFRpwABYqgb_TxiGZegvpfuk7ENypEalLvJMpkAoconRMCd

Join Zoom Meeting
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/86183087352?pwd=Y 1lpNkZ2SHI3RkZsh24yWUEWMWVXZz09

Meeting ID: 861 8308 7352

Passcode: 924952

One tap mobile

+13017158592,,86183087352#,,,,*824952# US (Washington DC)
+13126266799,,86183087352#,,,,*924952# US (Chicageo)

Dial by your location
+1 301 715 8592 US (Washington DC)
+1 312 626 6799 US (Chicago)
+1 929 205 6099 US (New York)
+1 253 215 8782 US (Tacoma)
+1 346 248 7789 US (Houston)
+1 669 200 8833 US (San Jose)
Meeting ID: 861 8308 7352
Passcode: 924852
Find your local number: https://us02web.zoom,us/u/kbFZQ8Ju6z

Clark E. Lovelace

Executlve Director

Brevard/Transylvania Chamber of Commerce
Transylvania County Tourisin Development Authorlty

175 East Maln St., Brevard NC, 28712

Chamber: 828-883-3700, brevardncchamber.org

TCTDA: §28-884-8900 / 800-648-4523, explorebrevard.com

BREVARD
_ B

8 attachments

%) TCTDA Agenda (6-24-21).pdf
132K

ﬂ TCTDA Board Meeting Minutes (May 27, 2021).pdf
148K

'E TCTDA Revenues & Expenditures (FY22 Budget) - For Board Conslderatlon.pdf




17K

-B TCTDA Revenues & Expenditures (May, 2021).pdf
38K

ﬂ Occupancy Revenue (thru April, FY21).pdf
85K

Black Mountain Trallhead Project, Phase il Funding Request-Pisgah Conservancy.pdf
ﬂ 112K

-B TCT Contribution Request - DuPont Triple Falls Trall Consult.pdf
153K

Lions Club LED Street Light Grant Application.pdf
A 221K



Transylvania County Tourism Development Authority Minutes of
6/24/21 Virtual Board Meeting

Present: Grant Bullard, Layton Parker, Libby Freeman, David Guice, Dee Dee Perkins, Ali Lien,
Jessica Whitmire

Absent: Tracie Trusler

Staff Present: Clark Lovelace, MJ Gordon, Corey Gafnea

Guests Present: Karen Tessier, Jonathan Griffin, Kate Hayes, Dana Antonuccio

Call to Order — Layton Parker
Layton Parker called the meeting to order at 8:31 AM.

Public Hearing — Layton Parker

LP called a public hearing to discuss the proposed FY 2022 TCTDA Budget. He reviewed the
presented and reviewed the budget, noting that there is one recommended change to what was
presented last month and has been available for public viewing. The change is the creation of a line
item for Destination Infrastructure Grants with a budget of $30,000, with those funds being reduced
from “Strategic Plan". This enables the Destination Infrastructure Committee to approve small grants
directly without having to submit them for board approval. The bottom line of the expenditures did not
change.

LP asked for any public comments. There were none. Public hearing was closed at 8:37.

Presentation of Minutes — Layton Parker
LP presented the minutes of the May 27, 2021 board meeting for review. David Guice made a motion
to approve as presented.. Dee Dee Perkins seconded. Motion passed.

Director’s Report — Clark Lovelace

Financlals — Clark Lovelace shared that occupancy tax revenues continue to occur at record pace
and expenditures continue to be close to budgeted amounts. He mentioned that there are some
projects that committees want to support prior to year-end that will be discussed later in this meeting.
There are two months of revenue and one month of expenses remaining in FY21. DG made a motion
to approve the May financials as presented. DDP seconded the motion. Motion passed unanimously.

CL menticned that subsequent to our last meeting he learned that it would be acceptable for the
$10,000 in funding for debris removal toc come from the Transylvania Always expenditure account item
instead of the Strategic Plan account. He recommended that we do so to more accurately reflect the
rationale for the funding and to better capture the funding source in the future. DG made a motion to
move the $10,000 for debris removal from the Strategic Plan account to the Transylvania Always
account as recommended. Mac Morrow seconded the motion. Motion approved unanimously.



Office Report and Tourism Update — CL stated that staff is working to update our FY22 grant
standards and creating a new grant application with three paths, Tourism Marketing, Destination
Infrastructure, and Transyivania Always. The new grant application will have a few additional
requirements including submitting a W-9 and record-keeping protocols for approval by the grant
based on some recommendations from Jonathan Griffin. Each committee will review their path, prior
to board approval. More to come.

Chair Report — Layton Parker

Chamber/TCT Contract Update — LP shared that the Chamber and TCT had reached a contract for
service agreement for FY22. The basic structure is the same as it has been, with a handful of
changes to the agreement based on advice from attorneys.

LP explained that research and conversations continue on the best path forward. He believes that in
the end it will be best to have a director and staff working directly for the TCT board and to continue to
contract with the Chamber for visitor center services and rent of office space. At this point we are not
ready to make a motion or share an official proposal. More research and work needs to occur.

Ecusta Trall - LP shared that the City of Brevard has taken recent action to take the lead on the
funding and development of the trall in Transylvania County, specifically including the trail in a RAISE
federal grant. The TCT board then discussed the Friends of the Ecusta Trail request for 1% of TCT
funds for a five-year period. In the end it was determined that the board is unable to provide a quick
answer to that request. The board expressed continued support for the trail and intent on funding
support moving forward, but felt it best to speak with the Transylvania County Manager and
Commissioners to ascertain their thoughts on the development of the trail, maintenance once
completed, and more, as well as a conversation with the City of Brevard to learn more about their
recent actions.

FY22 Budget Proposal — LP briefly reviewed the proposed budget which was covered earlier with an
opportunity for public comment. DDP made a motion to approve the budget as presented with the one
change. GB seconded the motion. Motion approved unanimously.

Miscellaneous -~ LP informed the Board that Tracie Trusler had resigned from her position on the
TCT board and thanked her for her service. He asked for suggestions for an accommodation
owner/operator to serve in her place. Ali Lein offered to step in as an accommodation owner/operator
if it would be easier to find a member-at-large. GB suggested that someone from the Toxaway area
might be a good fit and help with representation from the southern part of the county. CL reminded
that whatever is decided, an official recommendation will need to be made to the County
Commissioners.

Transylvania Always Committee Update — Aaron Baker
Transylvania Always Chair Aaron Baker presented a committee update. He reported that both the Be
Waterfall Wise and the LIB Cleanup Crew campaigns were accomplished in the last six months and
both received positive reviews. The Joel Branch Connector work has been completed. There is a
scheduled ribbon cutting for 11am on July 9. The Pisgah Conservancy is doing a press release with
input from TCT. TCT contributed an additional $3K from the TAC to cover 1/3 of the funding for
additional work required to finish the project. In the spring of 2021, the Transylvania Always
Committee reached out to our public land managers this spring for shovel ready projects in support of
the TAC mission. Three funding requests have been made.

« Triple Falls Consultation Funding request - $2,500.

« Black Mountain Trailhead Project - $30,000

« Butter Gap Area Trail Improvements - $30,000




The committee recommendation is to have Triple Falls and Black Mtn approved as FY21 expenditures
and use $30,000 from the FY22 budget for Butter Gap. TAC is almost out of dedicated funds for
FY21, having spent almost all of the $75,000 that was allocated. It is worth noting that this dollar
amount was lower than it would have been since the budget was set in the height of the pandemic
impact on local tourism. This plan also ensures that the TAC will have plenty of available funds for
FY22. As we've discussed, TAC expenditures are in a unique sweet spot in that they have a positive
impact on visitors, take care of our destination; and show locals some of the good that tourism
provides. To recap, the official committee recommendation is as follows: The Transylvania Always
Committee feels that the Triple Falls request for $2,500 and the Black Mountain request for $30,000
are important tourism-related expenditures that align with the goals of our Transyivania Always
initiative and move to approve both requests in full with any remaining funds from the budgeted FY21
Transylvania Always category, plus up to $32,500 of additional funds. GB seconded. Motion passed
unanimously.

Marketing Update — Market Connections

Karen Tessier asked if there were any questions about the marketing report that was sent in the
advance packet. She highiighted that the website metrics are trending positively, the billboards are in
place, the retargeted digital display ads program for our partners has been revamped. She presented
photos from two recent photoshoots which focused on diversity in the outdoors and downtown. The
recent Pink Bike sweepstakes had 3,460 entries, generated 749 email addresses and had over 10K
impressions. In addition the Transylvania Always initiative has shown TCT to be a leader in the state
of North Carolina with the work we are doing in regards to sustainability. The head of the North
Carolina State Parks is using our Be Waterfall Wise safety campaign. KT mentioned that the Outdoor
Economy Conference will be held October 12-15 in Cherokee NC.

Old Business

LP reminded the board that the Veterans History Museum of the Carolinas is on the agenda for next
month and to please visit it prior to the July meeting if you haven't been recently.

It was decided that for the next few months we will keep our meetings virtual, noting that while the
chamber meeting space is comfortable, it does not allow for six feet of social distance.

New Business

TCT received a grant appilication from Scott Kuba/Lions Club for $3K for Downtown LED Street Light
Project Request. This grant was presented to the Destination infrastructure Committee and DDP as
committee chair, recommends that the grant be funded with $3K coming from the FY21 budget. MM
seconded the motion. Motion passed.

KT let everyone know that Nathan Jordan has left Market Connections to start his own photography
and video production business.

Public Comment
None

Meeting Adjourn

LP made a motion made to adjourn mesting at 10:35. Seconded by DG. Motion passed.

Minutes respectfully submitted by Corey Gafnea



Clark Lovelace <clark@brevardncchamber.org>

July TCT Board Packet

Clark Lovelace <clark@brevardncchamber.org> Tue, Jul 20, 2021 at 4:33 PM
To: "Ali Lien (TCT)" <ali@explorebrevard.com=>, "David Guice (TCT)" <david@explorebrevard.com>, "Dee Dee Perkins
(TCT)" <dd@explorebrevard.com®, "Grant Bullard (TCT)" <grant@explorebrevard.com>, "Jessica Whitmire (TCT)"
<jessica@explorebrevard.com>, "Layton Parker (TCT)" <layton@explorebrevard.com>, "Libby Freeman (TCT)"
<libby@explorebrevard.com>, "Mac Morrow (TCT)" <mac@explorebrevard.com>

Cc: Mary Jo Gordon <mj@explorebrevard.com>, Corey Gafnea <corey@explorebrevard.com>, Jonathan Griffin
<Jonathan.Griffin@transylvaniacounty.org>, Karen Tessier <ktessier@mktconnections.com>

TCT Board,

Our July board meeting Is this Thursday, July 22, at 8:30am. It is virtual. Zoom information can be found at the bottom of
this email. Directly below is a director's report and attached is the normal packet of information. Please read

everything and let me know if you have any questions. If you're unable to attend, please email me and Corey at your
earliest convenience if you haven't alerted us yet.

Director's Report

 June Financials - Attached are the normal financial reports with notes at the bottom of the R&E report as
usual. There are a couple of items worth noting here as well:

e As a reminder, June is the month that ends up with two months of occupancy tax returns, May and June.
The attached includes May only. June occupancy revenues, plus a few expenses for June that came in
after the month ended, will be added and an updated version will be presented next month.

o The combination of the three months last year that were heavily impacted by COVID {March, April, May)
and the incredible growth since that fime have made comparison with last year problematic/skewed.
Believa it or not, we actually have double the revenues through May of this year as we did last year at
this time. But, that's having lost more than $200K in revenue last spring. We were headed toward $1.2M
last year before the pandemic, but ended up with $966K. Below is a recap of annual revenues for last
few years to give some perspective on our growth, knowing that some of it is following a significant
growth trend, some is likely a temporary boost due to the pandemic and some is likely mors permanent
duse to the pandemic:

= FY18 - $794K (13% growth over prior year)

» FY19 - $926K (17%)

= FY20 - using the $1.2M we were headed toward pre-pandemic (30%)
» FY21-$1.8M (50%)

» 2022 Board of Directors - As covered at our last board meeting, Tracie Trusler has resigned from her board
position. That creates an opening for an "Accommodations Owner/Operator” term. It ends at the end of this
year, o0 It would realistically be to finish this term and serve the new three-year term starting on January 1. And,
I'm sad to say that after six years of giving his intelligent input and sage advice, we'll have to say goodbye to
Grant Builard at the end of this year. His positlon s "Interested Individual." We should start thinking about
recommendations to the commissionars for that position as well.

» Marketing Committee Openings - With Tracie's departure, the Marketing Committee could use another board
member to serve. It usually has 3 board members and 2-3 non-board members. It is currently represented by
Layton and Dee Dee (chair) from the board. Let me or Dee Dee know if you're interested. Also of note, we had
three non-board members, but Bob Andrews left the area and we Just found out that Kat Warner is leaving
BMC. So, we need one or two more. If you have a suggestion, let me or Dee Dee know. Ideal is a tourism
business owner/operater with good marketing skills (like Layton and Dee Dee) or the marketing person for a
tourism business (like Kat).

» Tourism Grant Program - The grant committee met recantly and approved a $3,000 grant request in support of
the 2021 Silvermont Pumpkin Fest. Let Corey know if you would like more information.,

» Blke Repalr Station at Visitor Center - Attached is a photo of the newly installed bike repair station. Partners
were TCT, Chamber, City of Brevard and Blue Ridge Bicycie Club. A sticker will be added with logos for each
and we'll then do a ribbon cutting and press release.

+ Committes Presentation Schedule - As a reminder, here is the committee presentation schedule for the
remainder of the year.

o July - None

o August - Market Connections, Destination Infrastructure



September - Transylvania Always

October - Market Connections, Marketing

November/December - Finance, Destination Infrastructure

Note that the Nov/Dec meeting is on Thursday, December 2, due to the holidays around the 4th

Thursday of those months.

« BMC Opnportunlty - As a part of our advertising package with BMC, we are the sustaining sponsor of this
Saturday's Beethoven 5 concert. As such, we have access to a few tickets if any of you are interested. Please let
me know ASAP. if you are.

0 O o O

| think that covers everything for now. As always, let me know if any questions.

Clark Lovelace is inviting you to a scheduled Zoom meeting.

Topic: TCT Board Meeting
Time: Jul 22, 2021 08:30 AM Eastern Time (US and Canada)
Every month on the Fourth Thu, until Oct 28, 2021, 4 occurrence(s)
Jul 22, 2021 08:30 AM
Aug 26, 2021 08:30 AM
Sep 23, 2021 08:30 AM
Oct 28, 2021 08:30 AM
Please download and import the followlng iCalendar {.ics) files to your calendar system.
Monthly: hitps://us02web.zoom.us/meeting/tZIsf-qopjwpHSbF 1ATjwh1yrHFPX84x-zm8/ics ?icsToken=
98ty KuGurzMpGtySsxyFRpwABYqgb_TxiGZegvpfuk7ENypEalLvJMpkAoconRMCd

Join Zoom Meeting
hitps://us02web.zoom.us/j/86183087352?pwd=Y 1IpNkZ2SHI3RkZsb24yWUEWMWVXZz09

Meeting ID: 861 8308 7352

Passcode: 924952

One tap mobile

+13017158592,,86183087352#,,,,7924952# US (Washington DC)
+13126266799,,86183087352#,,,,*924952# US (Chicago)

Dlal by your location .
+1 301 715 8592 US (Washington DC)
+1 312 628 6799 US (Chicago)
+1 929 205 6099 US (New York)
+1 253 215 8782 US (Tacoma)
+1 346 248 7799 US (Houston)
+1 669 900 6833 US (San Jose)
Meeting ID: 861 8308 7352
Passcode: 824952
Find your local number: https:/fus02web.zoom.us/u/kbFZQBJu6z

Clark E. Lovelace

Executive Director

Brevard/Transylvania Chamber of Commerce
Transylvania County Tourlam Development Authority

175 East Main St., Brevard NC, 28712

Chamber: 828-883-3700, brevardncchamber.org

TCTDA: 828-884-8900 / 800-648-4523, explorebrevard.com

6 attachments

Blke Repalr Station.jpg
204K



ﬂ TCTDA Agenda (7-22-21).pdf
145K

'E TCTDA Board Mesting Minutes (June 24, 2021) .pdf
160K

ﬂ Occupancy Revenue ({thru May, FY21).pdf
86K

ﬂ TCTDA Revenues & Expenditures (May, 2021).pdf
38K

ﬂ TCT Marketing Report (July, 2021).pdf
160K



BREVARD TRANSYLVANIA COUNTY

»

Transylvania County Tourism Development Authority
, Minutes of 7/22/21 Virtual Board Meeting

Present: Grant Bullard, Layton Parker, Libby Freeman, David Guice, Dee Dee Perkins, Jessica
Whitmire, Ali Lien

Absent: Mac Morrow

Staff Present: Clark Lovelace, MJ Gordon, Corey Gafnea

Guests Present: Karen Tessier, Jonathan Griffin, Larry Chapman, Ken Com, David Morrow

Call to Order — Layton Parker
Layton Parker called the meeting to order at 8:31 AM.

Presentation of Minutes — Layton Parker

LP presented the minutes of the June 24, 2021 board meeting for review. Dee Dee Perkins made a
motion to approve as presented. David Guice seconded. Motion passed.

Director’s Report — Clark Lovelace

Financlals — CL referenced his comments with the financials in the advance packet and noted that
ultimately June financials will include both May and June occupancy tax returns. These only include
May. He will share updated June financials at the August meeting. There were no questions.

Office Report and Tourism Update — CL stated that staff is continuing to work on FY22 grant
standards and noted that tourism grants will now cap at $5,000. The Transylvania Always and
Destination Infrastructure committees are continuing to reach out to partners to look for good projects
to fund. He asked if any questions on his update with the advance packet. There were none.

Guest Speakers Veteran’s Museum of the Carolinas — Larry

Chapman, Ken Corn, David Morrow

The Veteran's Museum of the Carolinas has a digital campaign to drive visitors to the Museum. Ingles
sponsored the campaign. This campaign has been very effective. The total visitation from June 23 -
July 14 was 577 people. Higher visitation can be linked to digital marketing. The average time spent
in the museum is one hour. All of the docents are veterans. There is a very authentic community
supporting the museum and it is one of a handful of heritage sites in the county. While the need for
funding support was broached, no specific request was made. Clark shared that TCT does not
provide general funding support for basic operations for the many worthwhile nonprofits in
Transylvania County, but it does support specific programs or events on a case-by-case basis. TCT
is working on an update to their funding process and will share that information when completed.




Chair Report — Layton Parker

Ecusta Trall — There are still a lot of questions. What happens if the RAISE grant falls through? Will
City of Brevard still take the lead on the funding and development of the trail in Transylvania County?
We're trying to set up a meeting with City Manager Jim Fatland 1o discuss. The closing is scheduled
for the end of next week.

2022 TCT Board of Directors — LP noted that Tracie's position as an accommodation owner
member needs to be filled. It could be a member at-large position if Ali Lien moves into an
accommodation owner position. Another at-large seat will need to be filled at the end of the year to fill
Grant's spot. An application needs to be filled out to apply for any open positions. Layton Parker's
term as president/board ends December 2022. Options were discussed. When asked Clark shared
that the bylaws allow for an individual to serve two consecutive terms. The resolution that created the
TCTDA states that the county commissioners appoint the chair. Libby made a motion to recommend
that the county commissioners appoint Layton Parker as chair for the next two years. David Guice
seconded the motion. Motion passed unanimously.

Chamber/Tourism Contract Options — Jonathan Griffin

Jonathan Griffin made a presentation to update the board on options as they consider the best
structure moving forward. He emailed his slide show to board members as well.

Old Business
None

New Business

Corey reminded that board members are provided a branded goif shirt to promote our organization.
She will reach out via email.

LP took a quick straw poll and determined that it is appropriate for our next meeting to be held via
zoom. GB offered Gwynn Valley as a meeting place, plenty of open covered outdoor space to
meet. LP indicated that we may consider that at the next meeting.

Public Comment
Nonhe

Meeting Adjourn
LP made a motion to adjourn the meeting at 10:41.

Minutes respectfully submitted by Corey Gafnea



